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Explanatory Note
This Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment No. 1”) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2013, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on February 28, 2014 (the “Form 10-K”), is being filed for the purpose
of providing separate financial statements of NGL Energy Partners LP (“NGL Energy”) in accordance with Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X. As
indicated in the Form 10-K, NGL Energy is an equity method investee in which the Registrant owns 9.1 million common units and an 11.78%
interest in the general partner of NGL Energy. NGL Energy’s fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, and as such, NGL Energy’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 were not available until after the date the Form 10-K was filed and, accordingly, the
Registrant is filing the required NGL Energy financial statements with this Amendment No. 1. NGL Energy is solely responsible for the form
and content of the NGL Energy financial statements provided herewith.
As required by the rules of the SEC, this Amendment No. 1 sets forth an amended “Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement
Schedules” in its entirety and includes the new certifications from the Registrant’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer.
Except as expressly noted herein, this Amendment No. 1 speaks as of the original filing date of the Form 10-K, does not reflect events
that may have occurred subsequent to the original filing date, and does not modify or update in any way disclosures made in the Form 10-K.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)

(1)

Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements of the Registrant included in the Form 10-K filed with the SEC
on February 28, 2014, as listed on page F-1 thereof, which follows the signature page thereto.

(2)

Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules are omitted as inapplicable or because the required
information is contained in the financial statements or the notes thereto.
The financial statements of White Cliffs Pipeline, L.L.C., one of our equity method investees, are included in the Form 10-K
of the Registrant filed with the SEC on February 28, 2014 as Exhibit 99.1 pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.
The financial statements of NGL Energy Partners LP, one of our equity method investees, are included in this filing as
Exhibit 99.2 pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.

(3)

Exhibits. The following documents are included as exhibits to this Amendment No. 1. Those exhibits below incorporated by
reference herein are indicated as such by the information supplied in the parenthetical thereafter. If no parenthetical appears
after an exhibit, such exhibit is filed with this Amendment No. 1 or, except as otherwise noted, was filed with the Form 10-K
of the Registrant filed on February 28, 2014.

Exhibit
Number

Description

2.1

Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Affiliated Debtors filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware on
October 27, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our registration statement on Form 10, File No. 001-34736 (the “Form 10”)).

2.2

Contribution Agreement dated August 31, 2011, among SemStream, L.P., a wholly-owned subsidiary of SemGroup
Corporation, NGL Supply Terminal Company LLC, NGL Energy Partners LP and NGL Energy Holdings LLC (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.3

Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of NGL Energy Holdings LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.2 to
our current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.4

First Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated October 3, 2011, among NGL Energy Partners LP, Hicks
Oil & Hicksgas, Incorporated, NGL Holdings, Inc., Krim2010, LLC, Infrastructure Capital Management, LLC, Atkinson
Investors, LLC, Stanley A. Bugh, Robert R. Foster, Brian K. Pauling, Stanley D. Perry, Stephen D. Tuttle, Craig S. Jones,
Daniel Post, Mark McGinty, Sharra Straight, David Eastin, AO Energy, Inc., E. Osterman, Inc., E. Osterman Gas Service, Inc.,
E. Osterman Propane, Inc., Milford Propane, Inc., Osterman Propane, Inc., Propane Gas, Inc., and Saveway Propane Gas
Service, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.5

Amendment No. 1 and Joinder to First Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated November 1, 2011,
between NGL Energy Holdings LLC and SemStream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 2.4 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.6

Contribution Agreement, dated as of January 8, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, Rose Rock Midstream Holdings,
LLC, Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. and Rose Rock Midstream Operating, L.L.C. (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 8, 2013, filed January 14, 2013).

2.7

Contribution Agreement, dated as of December 12, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, Rose Rock Midstream
Holdings, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. and Rose Rock Midstream Operating, L.L.C.
(filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

2.8

Unit Purchase Agreement dated as of April 30, 2013, by and between Chesapeake Midstream Development, L.L.C. and
SemGas, L.P (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2013, filed August 6, 2013).
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2.9

First Amendment to Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2013, by and between Chesapeake Midstream
Development, L.L.C. and SemGas, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 2.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2013, filed
August 6, 2013).

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of November 30, 2009, of SemGroup Corporation (filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 10).

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated as of October 28, 2011, of SemGroup Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our current
report on Form 8-K dated October 28, 2011, filed October 28, 2011).

4.1

Form of stock certificate for our Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 10).

4.2

Form of stock certificate for our Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 10).

4.3

Warrant Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009, by and between SemGroup Corporation and Mellon Investor Services,
LLC (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Form 10).

4.4

Form of warrant certificate (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Form 10).

4.5

First Amendment to Warrant Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2012, by and between SemGroup Corporation and
Computershare Shareowner Services LLC (successor-in-interest to Mellon Investor Services, LLC) (filed as Exhibit 4.5 to our
annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed March 1, 2013 (the “2012 Form 10-K”)).

4.6

Indenture, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, as
guarantors, and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
June 14, 2013, filed June 20, 2013).

4.7

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, certain of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as representative of the Initial Purchasers (as defined therein) (filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 14, 2013, filed June 20, 2013).

10.1

Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) dated as of June 17, 2011, among SemGroup Corporation, as borrower, the lenders
parties thereto from time to time, and The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 17, 2011, filed June 21, 2011).

10.2

Second Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of September 19, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8K dated September 19, 2011, filed September 23, 2011).

10.3

Fifth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of September 26, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, filed November 9, 2012).

10.4

Sixth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of April 22, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K
dated April 22, 2013, filed April 24, 2013).

10.5

Seventh Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of December 11, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on
Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

10.6+

SemGroup Corporation Board of Directors Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2013, filed August 9, 2013).

10.7+

SemGroup Corporation Nonexecutive Directors’ Compensation Deferral Program (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Form 10).

10.8+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Form 10).

10.9+

Form of 2011 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive
officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2011, filed January 24, 2011).
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10.10+

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive officers and
employees in the United States during 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2011,
filed January 24, 2011).

10.11+

Form of 2012 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive
officers (filed as Exhibit 10.20 to our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed
February 29, 2012 (the “2011 Form 10-K”)).

10.12+

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive officers and
employees in the United States for awards granted on or after January 1, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the 2011 Form 10-K).

10.13+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Directors for awards granted on
or after May 22, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.31 to our Amendment No. 1 to our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012, filed March 1, 2013).

10.14+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for executive officers and
employees in the United States for awards granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.33 to our 2012 Form 10-K).

10.15+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement for executive officers for
awards granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.34 to our 2012 Form 10-K).

10.16+

Employment Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009, by and among SemManagement, L.L.C., SemGroup Corporation and
Norman J. Szydlowski (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Form 10).

10.17+

Letter Amendment dated March 18, 2010, by and among SemManagement, L.L.C., SemGroup Corporation and Norman J.
Szydlowski, amending the Employment Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Form 10).

10.18+

Form of Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and each of its executive officers other than Norman J.
Szydlowski (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 10).

10.19+

Form of Amendment to Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and certain of its executive officers (filed as
Exhibit 10.14 to the 2011 Form 10-K).

10.20+

Form of Second Amendment to Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and certain of its executive officers
(filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

10.21+

SemGroup Corporation Short-Term Incentive Program (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2011, filed March 2, 2011).

10.22+

SemGroup Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Appendix A to our definitive proxy statement, filed April 19, 2013).

10.23

Credit Agreement dated November 10, 2011, among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as borrower, The Royal Bank of Scotland
plc, as administrative agent and collateral agent, the other agents party thereto and the lenders and issuing banks party thereto
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s registration statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-176260).

10.24

First Amendment dated as of September 26, 2012, to the Credit Agreement among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain
subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. as guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent and collateral agent for the lenders (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2012, filed November 9, 2012).

10.25

Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement and First Amendment to the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of
September 20, 2013, by and among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as
guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the
lenders (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20, 2013, filed September 26, 2013).
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10.26

Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 10, 2013, by and among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain
subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013,
filed December 16, 2013).

10.27

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose
Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2011, filed December 20, 2011).

10.28

Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.
(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated January 8, 2013, filed January 14,
2013).

10.29

Amendment No. 2, dated as of December 16, 2013, to the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated
December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

10.30

First Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to
Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2011, filed December 20, 2011).

10.31+

Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K
dated December 8, 2011, filed December 14, 2011).

10.32+

Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Employees) under the Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed
February 29, 2012).

10.33+

Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Employees) under the Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan for awards
granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.35 to our 2012 Form 10-K).

21*

Subsidiaries of SemGroup Corporation.

23.1*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - BDO USA, LLP.

23.2**

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting firm - Grant Thornton LLP.

31.1**

Rule 13a - 14(a)/15d - 14(a) Certification of Carlin G. Conner, Chief Executive Officer.

31.2**

Rule 13a - 14(a)/15d - 14(a) Certification of Robert N. Fitzgerald, Chief Financial Officer.

32.1**

Section 1350 Certification of Carlin G. Conner, Chief Executive Officer.

32.2**

Section 1350 Certification of Robert N. Fitzgerald, Chief Financial Officer.

99.1*

White Cliffs Pipeline, L.L.C. financial statements presented pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.

99.2**

NGL Energy Partners LP financial statements presented pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.

101*

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and
2012, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Owners’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, and
(v) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*
**
+

Previously filed with the Form 10-K of the Registrant filed on February 28, 2014.
Filed or furnished, as applicable, with this Amendment No. 1.
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
SEMGROUP CORPORATION
Date: May 30, 2014
By: /s/ Robert N. Fitzgerald
Robert N. Fitzgerald
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Index to Exhibits
The following documents are included as exhibits to this Amendment No. 1. Those exhibits below incorporated by reference herein are
indicated as such by the information supplied in the parenthetical thereafter. If no parenthetical appears after an exhibit, such exhibit
is filed with this Amendment No. 1 or, except as otherwise noted, was filed with the Form 10-K of the Registrant filed on February 28,
2014.
Exhibit
Number

Description

2.1

Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Affiliated Debtors filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware on
October 27, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our registration statement on Form 10, File No. 001-34736 (the “Form 10”)).

2.2

Contribution Agreement dated August 31, 2011, among SemStream, L.P., a wholly-owned subsidiary of SemGroup Corporation,
NGL Supply Terminal Company LLC, NGL Energy Partners LP and NGL Energy Holdings LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our
current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.3

Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of NGL Energy Holdings LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.2 to our
current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.4

First Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated October 3, 2011, among NGL Energy Partners LP, Hicks
Oil & Hicksgas, Incorporated, NGL Holdings, Inc., Krim2010, LLC, Infrastructure Capital Management, LLC, Atkinson
Investors, LLC, Stanley A. Bugh, Robert R. Foster, Brian K. Pauling, Stanley D. Perry, Stephen D. Tuttle, Craig S. Jones, Daniel
Post, Mark McGinty, Sharra Straight, David Eastin, AO Energy, Inc., E. Osterman, Inc., E. Osterman Gas Service, Inc., E.
Osterman Propane, Inc., Milford Propane, Inc., Osterman Propane, Inc., Propane Gas, Inc., and Saveway Propane Gas
Service, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.5

Amendment No. 1 and Joinder to First Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated November 1, 2011, between
NGL Energy Holdings LLC and SemStream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 2.4 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 1,
2011, filed November 4, 2011).

2.6

Contribution Agreement, dated as of January 8, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, Rose Rock Midstream Holdings,
LLC, Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. and Rose Rock Midstream Operating, L.L.C. (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 8, 2013, filed January 14, 2013).

2.7

Contribution Agreement, dated as of December 12, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, Rose Rock Midstream
Holdings, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC, Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. and Rose Rock Midstream Operating, L.L.C. (filed
as Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

2.8

Unit Purchase Agreement dated as of April 30, 2013, by and between Chesapeake Midstream Development, L.L.C. and SemGas,
L.P (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2013, filed August 6, 2013).

2.9

First Amendment to Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2013, by and between Chesapeake Midstream Development,
L.L.C. and SemGas, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 2.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2013, filed August 6, 2013).

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of November 30, 2009, of SemGroup Corporation (filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 10).

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated as of October 28, 2011, of SemGroup Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our current
report on Form 8-K dated October 28, 2011, filed October 28, 2011).

4.1

Form of stock certificate for our Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 10).

4.2

Form of stock certificate for our Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 10).
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4.3

Warrant Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009, by and between SemGroup Corporation and Mellon Investor Services, LLC
(filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Form 10).

4.4

Form of warrant certificate (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Form 10).

4.5

First Amendment to Warrant Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2012, by and between SemGroup Corporation and
Computershare Shareowner Services LLC (successor-in-interest to Mellon Investor Services, LLC) (filed as Exhibit 4.5 to our
annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed March 1, 2013 (the “2012 Form 10-K”)).

4.6

Indenture, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, as
guarantors, and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
June 14, 2013, filed June 20, 2013).

4.7

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and among SemGroup Corporation, certain of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as representative of the Initial Purchasers (as defined therein) (filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 14, 2013, filed June 20, 2013).

10.1

Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) dated as of June 17, 2011, among SemGroup Corporation, as borrower, the lenders
parties thereto from time to time, and The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent (filed as
Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 17, 2011, filed June 21, 2011).

10.2

Second Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of September 19, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K
dated September 19, 2011, filed September 23, 2011).

10.3

Fifth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of September 26, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, filed November 9, 2012).

10.4

Sixth Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of April 22, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
April 22, 2013, filed April 24, 2013).

10.5

Seventh Amendment to the Credit Facility, dated as of December 11, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

10.6+

SemGroup Corporation Board of Directors Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2013, filed August 9, 2013).

10.7+

SemGroup Corporation Nonexecutive Directors’ Compensation Deferral Program (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Form 10).

10.8+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Form 10).

10.9+

Form of 2011 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive
officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2011, filed January 24, 2011).

10.10+

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive officers and
employees in the United States during 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2011,
filed January 24, 2011).

10.11+

Form of 2012 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive
officers (filed as Exhibit 10.20 to our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed
February 29, 2012 (the “2011 Form 10-K”)).

10.12+

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan for executive officers and
employees in the United States for awards granted on or after January 1, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the 2011 Form 10-K).

10.13+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Directors for awards granted on or
after May 22, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.31 to our Amendment No. 1 to our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed March 1, 2013).
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10.14+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for executive officers and employees
in the United States for awards granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.33 to our 2012 Form 10-K).

10.15+

SemGroup Corporation Equity Incentive Plan Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement for executive officers for
awards granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.34 to our 2012 Form 10-K).

10.16+

Employment Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009, by and among SemManagement, L.L.C., SemGroup Corporation and
Norman J. Szydlowski (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Form 10).

10.17+

Letter Amendment dated March 18, 2010, by and among SemManagement, L.L.C., SemGroup Corporation and Norman J.
Szydlowski, amending the Employment Agreement dated as of November 30, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Form 10).

10.18+

Form of Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and each of its executive officers other than Norman J.
Szydlowski (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 10).

10.19+

Form of Amendment to Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and certain of its executive officers (filed as
Exhibit 10.14 to the 2011 Form 10-K).

10.20+

Form of Second Amendment to Severance Agreement between SemGroup Corporation and certain of its executive officers (filed
as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).

10.21+

SemGroup Corporation Short-Term Incentive Program (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated
February 24, 2011, filed March 2, 2011).

10.22+

SemGroup Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Appendix A to our definitive proxy statement, filed April 19, 2013).

10.23

Credit Agreement dated November 10, 2011, among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as borrower, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc,
as administrative agent and collateral agent, the other agents party thereto and the lenders and issuing banks party thereto (filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s registration statement on Form S-1, File No. 333-176260).

10.24

First Amendment dated as of September 26, 2012, to the Credit Agreement among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain
subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. as guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent and collateral agent for the lenders (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2012, filed November 9, 2012).

10.25

Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement and First Amendment to the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of
September 20, 2013, by and among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as
guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the
lenders (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20, 2013, filed September 26, 2013).

10.26

Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 10, 2013, by and among Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., certain
subsidiaries of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P., as guarantors, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2013, filed
December 16, 2013).

10.27

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose
Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2011, filed December 20, 2011).

10.28

Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. (filed
as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated January 8, 2013, filed January 14, 2013).

10.29

Amendment No. 2, dated as of December 16, 2013, to the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Rose Rock Midstream, L.P. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated
December 10, 2013, filed December 16, 2013).
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10.30

First Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Rose Rock Midstream GP, LLC (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to
Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2011, filed December 20, 2011).

10.31+

Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s current report on Form 8-K
dated December 8, 2011, filed December 14, 2011).

10.32+

Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Employees) under the Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.3.1 to Rose Rock Midstream, L.P.’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed
February 29, 2012).

10.33+

Form of Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Employees) under the Rose Rock Midstream Equity Incentive Plan for awards
granted on or after March 1, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.35 to our 2012 Form 10-K).
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Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We have issued our report dated May 30, 2014 with respect to the consolidated financial statements of NGL Energy Partners LP and
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2014. Our report is included in the
Amended Annual Report of SemGroup Corporation on Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year ended December 31, 2013. We hereby
consent to the incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration Statements of SemGroup Corporation on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333170968 and 333-189905), Form S-3 (File No. 333-185649) and Form S-4 (File No. 333-193005).
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Tulsa, Oklahoma
May 30, 2014

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Carlin G. Conner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) of SemGroup Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and
(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and
b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 30, 2014
/s/ Carlin G. Conner
Carlin G. Conner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Robert N. Fitzgerald, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) of SemGroup Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
(a)
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and
(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a)
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 30, 2014
/s/ Robert N. Fitzgerald
Robert N. Fitzgerald
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report of SemGroup Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year
ended December 31, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Carlin G. Conner,
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: May 30, 2014
/s/ Carlin G. Conner
Carlin G. Conner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report of SemGroup Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A (Amendment No. 1) for the year
ended December 31, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert N. Fitzgerald,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: May 30, 2014
/s/ Robert N. Fitzgerald
Robert N. Fitzgerald
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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F-1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Partners
NGL Energy Partners LP
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NGL Energy Partners LP (a Delaware limited partnership) and subsidiaries
(the “Partnership”) as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of NGL
Energy Partners LP and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Partnership’s
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014, based on criteria established in the 1992 Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated May 30, 2014
(not included herein) expressed an unqualified opinion.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Tulsa, Oklahoma
May 30, 2014
F-2

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
At March 31, 2014 and 2013
(U.S. Dollars in Thousands, except unit amounts)
March 31,
2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,822 and $1,760,
respectively
Accounts receivable - affiliates
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation of $109,564 and $50,127,
respectively
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization of $116,728 and $44,155, respectively
INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable - trade
Accounts payable - affiliates
Accrued expenses and other payables
Advance payments received from customers
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

$

$

$

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

10,440

2013
(Note 2)

$

11,561

900,904
7,445
310,160
80,350
1,309,299

562,757
22,883
126,895
37,891
761,987

829,346
1,107,006
714,956
189,821
16,795
4,167,223

526,437
555,220
441,432
—
6,542
2,291,618

740,211
76,846
141,690
29,965
7,080
995,792

$

$

1,629,834
9,744

536,055
6,900
85,606
22,372
8,626
659,559
740,436
2,205

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
EQUITY, per accompanying statement:
General partner, representing a 0.1% interest, 79,420 and 53,676 notional units at March 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively
Limited partners, representing a 99.9% interest Common units, 73,421,309 and 47,703,313 units issued and outstanding at March 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively
Subordinated units, 5,919,346 units issued and outstanding at March 31, 2014 and 2013
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

(45,287)

$

1,570,074
2,028
(236)
5,274
1,531,853
4,167,223 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(50,497)
920,998
13,153
24
5,740
889,418
2,291,618

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(U.S. Dollars in Thousands, except unit and per unit amounts)
2014

Year Ended March 31,
2013

$ 4,558,545
143,100
2,650,425
551,815
1,180,895
176,781
437,713
9,699,274

$ 2,316,288
62,227
1,604,746
430,273
—
—
4,233
4,417,767

4,477,397
11,738
2,518,099
354,676
1,172,754
171,422
426,613
9,132,699

2,244,647
5,611
1,530,459
258,393
—
—
—
4,039,110

—
—
1,086,881
130,142
—
—
—
1,217,023

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Operating
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Operating Income

259,396
79,860
120,754
106,565

169,799
52,698
68,853
87,307

47,300
16,009
15,111
15,030

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Earnings of unconsolidated entities
Interest expense
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other, net
Income Before Income Taxes

1,898
(58,854)
—
86
49,695

—
(32,994)
(5,769)
1,521
50,065

—
(7,620)
—
1,055
8,465

(937)

(1,875)

(601)

REVENUES:
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Other
Total Revenues
COST OF SALES:
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Other
Total Cost of Sales

INCOME TAX PROVISION
Net Income
NET INCOME ALLOCATED TO GENERAL PARTNER
NET (INCOME) LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

48,758

48,190

(14,148)

(2,917)

(1,103)

(250)

2012

$

—
—
1,111,139
199,334
—
—
—
1,310,473

7,864
(8)
12

NET INCOME ALLOCATED TO LIMITED PARTNERS

$

33,507

$

45,023

$

7,868

BASIC AND DILUTED INCOME PER COMMON UNIT

$

0.51

$

0.96

$

0.32

BASIC AND DILUTED INCOME PER SUBORDINATED UNIT

$

0.32

$

0.93

$

0.58

BASIC AND DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE UNITS OUTSTANDING:
Common units
Subordinated units

61,970,471
5,919,346

41,353,574
5,919,346

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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15,169,983
5,175,384

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(U.S. Dollars in Thousands)
2014

Net income
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Comprehensive income

$
$

Year Ended March 31,
2013

48,758 $
(260)
48,498 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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48,190 $
(7)
48,183 $

2012

7,864
(25)
7,839

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(U.S. Dollars in Thousands, except unit and share amounts)

General
Partner
$
72

BALANCES, MARCH 31, 2011

Common
Units
10,933,568

Distribution to partners prior to
initial public offering

(4)

Conversion of common units to
subordinated units

—

Sale of units in public offering, net

—

Repurchase of common units

—

Units issued in business
combinations, net of issuance
costs

—

14,432,031

386

Contributions
Net income (loss)
Distribution to partners subsequent
to initial public offering

Distributions

—

—

—

(5,919,346)

(23,485)

5,919,346

23,485

—

—

—

4,025,000

75,289

—

—

—

—

75,289

(3,418)

—

—

—

—

(3,418)

296,500

—

—

—

—

296,500

—

—

—

—

—

440

826

8

—

6,472

—

1,396

—

(12)

7,864

(20)

—

(10,133)

—

(5,057)

—

—

(15,210)

—
19,824

(25)
31

—
428

(25)
405,329

(9,989)

—

(74)

(71,682)

510

Units issued in business
combinations, net of issuance
costs
Equity issued pursuant to incentive
compensation plan
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
BALANCES, MARCH 31, 2013
Distributions
Contributions

Noncontrolling
Total
Interests
Equity
$
— $
47,353

—

(1,778)

Contributions

Amount
$
—

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
$
56

(3,846)

—
442

Other comprehensive loss
BALANCES, MARCH 31, 2012

—

Limited Partners
Subordinated
Amount
Units
$
47,225
—

(175,000)

—
23,296,253
—

—
384,604
(59,841)

—
5,919,346
—

(3,850)

—

—

—

—

—

403

913

24,250,258

550,873

—

—

—

4,733

503,018

—

156,802

3,657

—

—

—

—

3,657

2,917

—

41,705

—

3,318

—

250

48,190

—
(50,497)

—
47,703,313

—
920,998

—
5,919,346

—
13,153

(7)
24

(9,703)

—

(11,920)

—

(52,588)

(123,467)

—

—
5,740
(840)

(7)
889,418
(145,930)

765

—

—

—

—

—

2,060

2,825

Units issued in business
combinations, net of issuance
costs

—

2,860,879

80,591

—

—

—

—

80,591

Sales of units, net of issuance costs

—

22,560,848

650,155

—

—

—

—

650,155

Equity issued pursuant to incentive
compensation plan

—

296,269

9,085

—

—

—

—

9,085

Disposal of noncontrolling interest

—

—

—

—

—

—

(2,789)

(2,789)

14,148

—

32,712

—

795

—

1,103

48,758

—

—

—

—

—

(260)

73,421,309

$ 1,570,074

5,919,346

$ 2,028

Net income
Other comprehensive loss
BALANCES, MARCH 31, 2014

$ (45,287)

$

(236)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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—
$

(260)

5,274 $ 1,531,853

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(U.S. Dollars in Thousands)
2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, including debt issuance cost amortization
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Non-cash equity-based compensation expense
Loss (gain) on disposal or impairment of assets
Provision for doubtful accounts
Commodity derivative (gain) loss
Earnings of unconsolidated entities
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exclusive of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable - trade
Accounts receivable - affiliates
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable - trade
Accounts payable - affiliates
Accrued expenses and other payables
Advance payments received from customers
Net cash provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of long-lived assets
Acquisitions of businesses, including acquired working capital, net of cash acquired
Cash flows from commodity derivatives
Proceeds from sales of assets
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated entities
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowings under revolving credit facilities
Payments on revolving credit facilities
Issuances of notes
Proceeds from borrowings on other long-term debt
Payments on other long-term debt
Debt issuance costs
Contributions
Distributions
Proceeds from sale of common units, net of offering costs
Repurchase of common units
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

Year Ended March 31,
2013

48,758

$

48,190

2012

$

132,653
—
14,054
3,597
2,172
43,655
(1,898)
312

77,513
5,769
8,670
187
1,315
4,376
—
375

17,188
—
—
(71)
1,049
(5,974)
—
403

21,388
18,002
(73,321)
18,900
(146,152)
67,361
(61,171)
(3,074)
85,236

2,562
(12,877)
18,433
22,585
(16,913)
(6,813)
(9,689)
(11,049)
132,634

(20,179)
193
30,268
14,344
35,747
4,549
366
4,582
90,329

(165,148)
(1,268,810)
(35,956)
24,660
(11,515)
1,591
(195)
(1,455,373)

(72,475)
(490,805)
11,579
5,080
—
—
—
(546,621)

(7,544)
(297,401)
6,464
1,238
—
—
346
(296,897)

2,545,500
1,227,975
(2,101,000)
(964,475)
450,000
250,000
880
653
(8,819)
(4,837)
(24,595)
(20,189)
2,825
913
(145,930)
(71,682)
650,155
(642)
—
—
1,369,016
417,716
(1,121)
3,729
11,561
7,832
$
10,440 $
11,561 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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7,864

478,900
(329,900)
—
—
(1,278)
(2,380)
440
(19,060)
74,759
(3,418)
198,063
(8,505)
16,337
7,832

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
At March 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Note 1 — Nature of Operations and Organization
NGL Energy Partners LP (“we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Partnership”) is a Delaware limited partnership formed in September 2010 by
several investors (“IEP Parties”). NGL Energy Holdings LLC serves as our general partner. At March 31, 2014, our operations include:
•

A crude oil logistics business, the assets of which include crude oil storage terminals, pipeline injection stations, a fleet of trucks,
a fleet of leased railcars, and a fleet of barges and towboats, and a 50% interest in a crude oil pipeline. Our crude oil logistics
business purchases crude oil from producers and transports it for resale at pipeline injection points, storage terminals, barge
loading facilities, rail facilities, refineries, and other trade hubs.

•

A water solutions business, the assets of which include water treatment and disposal facilities, a fleet of water trucks, and frac
tanks. Our water solutions business generates revenues from the gathering, transportation, treatment, and disposal of wastewater
generated from crude oil and natural gas production operations, and from the sale of recycled water and recovered hydrocarbons.

•

Our liquids business, which supplies natural gas liquids to retailers, wholesalers, refiners, and petrochemical plants throughout
the United States and in Canada, and which provides natural gas liquids terminaling services through its 22 terminals throughout
the United States and railcar transportation services through its fleet of leased and owned railcars. Our liquids business purchases
propane, butane, and other products from refiners, processing plants, producers, and other parties, and sells the product to
retailers, refiners, and other participants in the wholesale markets.

•

Our retail propane business, which sells propane, distillates, and equipment and supplies to end users consisting of residential,
agricultural, commercial, and industrial customers and to certain re-sellers in more than 20 states.

We also operate a refined products marketing business, which purchases gasoline and diesel fuel from suppliers and typically sells
these products in back-to-back contracts to customers at a nationwide network of third-party owned terminaling and storage facilities. We also
operate a renewables business, which purchases ethanol primarily at production facilities and transports the ethanol for sale at various locations
to refiners and blenders, and purchases biodiesel from production facilities in the Midwest and in Houston, Texas, and transports the product
using leased railcars for sale to refiners and blenders. These businesses were acquired in our December 2013 acquisition of Gavilon, LLC
(“Gavilon Energy”).
Initial Public Offering
On May 17, 2011, we completed our initial public offering (“IPO”). We sold a total of 4,025,000 common units in our IPO at $21.00
per unit. Our proceeds from the sale of 3,850,000 common units of $71.9 million, net of total offering costs of $9.0 million, were used to repay
advances under our acquisition credit facility and for general partnership purposes. Proceeds from the sale of 175,000 common units ($3.4
million) from the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase additional common units from us were used to redeem 175,000 of the
common units outstanding prior to our IPO. Upon the completion of our IPO and the underwriters’ exercise in full of their option to purchase
additional common units from us and the redemption, we had outstanding 8,864,222 common units, 5,919,346 subordinated units, a 0.1%
general partner interest, and incentive distribution rights (“IDRs”).
Acquisitions Subsequent to Initial Public Offering
Subsequent to our IPO, we significantly expanded our operations through a number of business combinations, including the following,
among others:
•

In October 2011, we completed a business combination with E. Osterman Propane, Inc., its affiliated companies, and members of
the Osterman family, whereby we acquired retail propane operations in the northeastern United States.

•

In November 2011, we completed a business combination with SemStream, L.P. (“SemStream”), whereby we acquired
SemStream’s wholesale natural gas liquids supply and marketing operations and its 12 natural gas liquids terminals.

•

In January 2012, we completed a business combination with seven companies associated with Pacer Propane Holding, L.P.,
whereby we acquired retail propane operations, primarily in the western United States.
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•

In February 2012, we completed a business combination with North American Propane, Inc., whereby we acquired retail propane
and distillate operations in the northeastern United States.

•

In May 2012, we acquired the retail propane and distillate operations of Downeast Energy Corp (“Downeast”). These operations
are primarily in the northeastern United States.

•

In June 2012, we completed a business combination with High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy GP, LLC (collectively,
“High Sierra”), whereby we acquired all of the ownership interests in High Sierra. High Sierra’s businesses include crude oil
gathering, transportation and marketing; water treatment, disposal, and transportation; and natural gas liquids transportation and
marketing.

•

In November 2012, we completed a business combination whereby we acquired Pecos Gathering & Marketing, L.L.C. and
certain of its affiliated companies (collectively, “Pecos”). The business of Pecos consists primarily of crude oil purchasing and
logistics operations in Texas and New Mexico.

•

In December 2012, we completed a business combination whereby we acquired all of the membership interests in Third Coast
Towing LLC (“Third Coast”). The business of Third Coast consists primarily of transporting crude oil via barge.

•

In July 2013, we completed a business combination whereby we acquired the assets of Crescent Terminals, LLC and the
ownership interests in Cierra Marine, LP and its affiliated companies (collectively, “Crescent”), whereby we acquired four
towboats, seven crude oil barges, and a crude oil terminal in South Texas.

•

In July 2013, we completed a business combination with High Roller Wells Big Lake SWD No. 1, Ltd. (“Big Lake”), whereby
we acquired a water disposal facility in West Texas. We also entered into a development agreement that provides us the option to
purchase disposal facilities that may be developed in the future. During March 2014, we purchased one additional facility under
this agreement.

•

In August 2013, we completed a business combination whereby we acquired seven entities affiliated with Oilfield Water Lines
LP (collectively, “OWL”). The businesses of OWL include water disposal operations and a water transportation business in
Texas.

•

In September 2013, we completed a business combination with Coastal Plains Disposal #1, LLC (“Coastal”), in which we
acquired the ownership interests in water disposal facilities in Texas and the right to purchase one additional facility, which we
exercised in March 2014.

•

In December 2013, we acquired the ownership interests in Gavilon Energy. The assets of Gavilon Energy include crude oil
terminals in Oklahoma, Texas, and Louisiana and a 50% interest in Glass Mountain Pipeline, LLC (“Glass Mountain”), which
owns a crude oil pipeline that originates in western Oklahoma and terminates in Cushing, Oklahoma. This pipeline became
operational in February 2014. The operations of Gavilon Energy include the marketing of crude oil, refined products, ethanol,
biodiesel, and natural gas liquids.

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Partnership and its controlled
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and account balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
We have made certain reclassifications to the prior period financial statements to conform with classification methods used in fiscal
2014. These reclassifications had no impact on previously-reported amounts of equity or net income. In addition, certain balances at March 31,
2013 were adjusted to reflect the final acquisition accounting for certain business combinations.
F-9

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
At March 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the period.
Critical estimates we make in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements include determining the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired in business combinations; the collectability of accounts receivable; the recoverability of inventories; useful lives and
recoverability of property, plant and equipment and amortizable intangible assets; the impairment of goodwill; the fair value of derivative
financial investments; and accruals for various commitments and contingencies, among others. Although we believe these estimates are
reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Fair Value Measurements
We apply fair value measurements to certain assets and liabilities, principally our commodity derivative instruments and assets and
liabilities acquired in business combinations. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is based upon assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and risks inherent in valuation techniques
and inputs to valuations. This includes not only the credit standing of counterparties and credit enhancements but also the impact of our own
nonperformance risk on our liabilities. Fair value measurements assume that the transaction occurs in the principal market for the asset or
liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability (the market for which the reporting
entity would be able to maximize the amount received or minimize the amount paid). We evaluate the need for credit adjustments to our
derivative instrument fair values in accordance with the requirements noted above. Such adjustments were not material to the fair values of our
derivative instruments.
We use the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three
broad levels:
•

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that we have the ability to access at the
measurement date.

•

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or
liability, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are
derived from observable market data by correlation or other means. Instruments categorized in Level 2 include non-exchange
traded derivatives such as over-the-counter commodity price swap and option contracts and interest rate protection agreements.
The majority of our fair value measurements related to our derivative financial instruments were categorized as Level 2 at
March 31, 2014 and 2013 (see Note 12). We determine the fair value of all our derivative financial instruments utilizing pricing
models for significantly similar instruments. Inputs to the pricing model include publicly available prices and forward curves
generated from a compilation of data gathered from third parties.

•

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability including situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability. We did not have any fair value measurements categorized as Level 3 at March 31, 2014 or 2013.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable
data (Level 3). In some cases, the inputs used to measure fair value might fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level
input that is significant to a fair value measurement determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
Derivative Financial Instruments
We record our derivative financial instrument contracts at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets, with changes in the fair value
of our commodity derivative instruments included in our consolidated statements of operations in cost of sales. Contracts that qualify for the
normal purchase or sale exemption and are designated as such are not accounted for as derivatives at market value and, accordingly, are
recorded when the delivery occurs.
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We have not designated any financial instruments as hedges for accounting purposes. All mark-to-market gains and losses on
commodity derivative instruments that do not qualify as normal purchases or sales, whether cash transactions or non-cash mark-to-market
adjustments, are reported within cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations, regardless of whether the contract is physically or
financially settled.
We utilize various commodity derivative financial instrument contracts to help reduce our exposure to variability in future commodity
prices. We do not enter such contracts for trading purposes. Changes in assets and liabilities from commodity derivative financial instruments
result primarily from changes in market prices, newly originated transactions, and the timing of the settlements. We attempt to balance our
contractual portfolio in terms of notional amounts and timing of performance and delivery obligations. However, net unbalanced positions can
exist or are established based on our assessment of anticipated market movements. Inherent in the resulting contractual portfolio are certain
business risks, including market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the risk that the value of the portfolio will change, either favorably or
unfavorably, in response to changing market conditions. Credit risk is the risk of loss from non-performance by suppliers, customers, or
financial counterparties to a contract. We take an active role in managing and controlling market and credit risk and have established control
procedures that we review on an ongoing basis. We monitor market risk through a variety of techniques and attempt to minimize credit risk
exposure through credit policies and periodic monitoring procedures.
Revenue Recognition
We record revenues from product sales at the time title to the product transfers to the purchaser, which typically occurs upon receipt of
the product by the purchaser. We record terminaling, storage, and service revenues at the time the service is performed, and we record tank and
other rentals over the term of the lease. Revenues for the wastewater disposal business are recognized upon receipt of the wastewater at our
disposal facilities.
We report taxes collected from customers and remitted to taxing authorities, such as sales and use taxes, on a net basis. Amounts
billed to customers for shipping and handling costs are included in revenues in the consolidated statements of operations.
We enter into certain contracts whereby we agree to purchase product from a counterparty and to sell the same volume of product to
the same counterparty at a different location or time. When such agreements are entered into concurrently and are entered into in contemplation
of each other, we record the revenues for these transactions net of cost of sales.
Cost of Sales
We include in cost of sales all costs we incur to acquire products, including the costs of purchasing, terminaling, and transporting
inventory prior to delivery to our customers. Cost of sales does not include any depreciation of our property, plant and equipment. Cost of sales
does include amortization of certain contract-based intangible assets of $6.2 million, $5.3 million, and $0.8 million during the years ended
March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of operations includes all depreciation of our property, plant and
equipment and amortization of intangible assets other than debt issuance costs, for which the amortization is recorded to interest expense, and
certain contract-based intangible assets, for which the amortization is recorded to cost of sales.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand and time deposits, and funds invested in highly liquid instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. At times, certain account balances may exceed federally insured limits.
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Supplemental cash flow information is as follows:
Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

2014

Interest paid, exclusive of debt issuance costs and letter of
credit fees
Income taxes paid

$
$

31,827
1,639

$
$

2012

27,384 $
1,027 $

4,966
430

Cash flows from commodity derivative instruments are classified as cash flows from investing activities in the consolidated statements
of cash flows.
Accounts Receivable and Concentration of Credit Risk
We operate in the United States and Canada. We grant unsecured credit to customers under normal industry standards and terms, and
have established policies and procedures that allow for an evaluation of each customer’s creditworthiness as well as general economic
conditions. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the collectability of customer accounts, which assessment
considers the overall creditworthiness of customers and any specific disputes. Accounts receivable are considered past due or delinquent based
on contractual terms. We write off accounts receivable against the allowance for doubtful accounts when collection efforts have been
exhausted.
We execute netting agreements with certain customers to mitigate our credit risk. Receivables and payables are reflected at a net
balance to the extent a netting agreement is in place and we intend to settle on a net basis.
Our accounts receivable consist of the following:
March 31, 2014
Gross
Receivable

Segment

Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Other

March 31, 2013
Gross
Allowance for
Receivable
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts
(Note 2)
Doubtful Accounts
(in thousands)

$

411,090
25,700
192,529
75,606
105,670
54,466
38,665
903,726

$

$

105
405
617
1,667
—
—
28
2,822

$

$

360,589
9,618
144,267
49,233
—
—
810
564,517

$

$

11
29
76
1,644
—
—
—
1,760

$

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:
2014

Allowance for doubtful accounts, beginning of period
Provision for doubtful accounts
Write off of uncollectible accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts, end of period

$

$
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Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

1,760 $
2,172
(1,110)
2,822 $

818 $
1,315
(373)
1,760 $

2012

161
1,049
(392)
818

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
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At March 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
For the year ended March 31, 2014, sales of crude oil and natural gas liquids to our largest customer represented 10% of our
consolidated total revenues. For the year ended March 31, 2013, sales of crude oil and natural gas liquids to our largest customer represented
10% of our consolidated total revenues. At March 31, 2013, one customer of our crude oil logistics segment represented 10% of our
consolidated accounts receivable balance.
Inventories
We value our inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined using either the weighted average cost or the first in, first
out (FIFO) methods, including the cost of transportation. In performing this analysis, we take into consideration fixed-price forward sale
commitments and the opportunity to transfer propane inventory from our wholesale business to our retail business for sale in the retail markets.
Inventories consist of the following:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Crude oil
Natural gas liquids —
Propane
Butane and other
Refined products
Renewables
Other

$

156,473

$

85,159
19,051
23,209
11,778
14,490
310,160

$

46,156

$

45,428
24,090
—
—
11,221
126,895

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities
As part of the December 2013 acquisition of Gavilon Energy, we acquired a 50% interest in Glass Mountain and an 11% interest in a
limited liability company that owns an ethanol production facility. We account for these investments under the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, we do not report the individual assets and liabilities of these entities on our consolidated balance sheet; instead, our
ownership interests are reported within “Investments in Unconsolidated Entities” on our consolidated balance sheet. We record our share of any
income or loss generated by these entities as an increase to our equity method investments, and record any distributions we receive from these
entities as reductions to our equity method investments.
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Accrued Expenses and Other Payables
Accrued expenses and other payables consist of the following:
March 31,
2013
(Note 4)

2014
(in thousands)

Accrued compensation and benefits
Derivative liabilities
Income and other tax liabilities
Product exchange liabilities
Other

$

$

45,006 $
42,214
13,421
3,719
37,330
141,690 $

27,252
12,701
22,659
6,741
16,253
85,606

Property, Plant and Equipment
We record property, plant and equipment at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Acquisitions and improvements are capitalized, and
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. As we dispose of assets, we remove the cost and related accumulated depreciation from the
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in other income. We compute depreciation expense using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets (see Note 5).
We evaluate the carrying value of our property, plant and equipment for potential impairment when events and circumstances warrant
such a review. A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the anticipated undiscounted future cash flows from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset group is lower than its carrying value. In that event, we recognize a loss equal to the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the asset group.
Intangible Assets
Our intangible assets include contracts and arrangements acquired in business combinations, including lease agreements, customer
relationships, covenants not to compete, and trade names. In addition, we capitalize certain debt issuance costs incurred in our long-term debt
arrangements. We amortize our intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives (see Note 7). We amortize debt
issuance costs over the terms of the related debt on a method that approximates the effective interest method.
We evaluate the carrying value of our amortizable intangible assets for potential impairment when events and circumstances warrant
such a review. A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the anticipated undiscounted future cash flows from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset group is lower than its carrying value. In that event, we recognize a loss equal to the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the asset group. When we cease to use an acquired trade name, we test the trade name for impairment using the
“relief from royalty” method and we begin amortizing the trade name over its estimated useful life as a defensive asset.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of acquired businesses. Business combinations are accounted
for using the “acquisition method” (see Note 4). We expect that substantially all of our goodwill at March 31, 2014 is deductible for income tax
purposes.
Goodwill and intangible assets determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead are evaluated for impairment
periodically. We evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually, or more often if events or circumstances
indicate that the assets might be impaired. We perform the annual evaluation at January 1 of each year.
To perform this assessment, we consider qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of each
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount. If we conclude that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its
carrying amount, we perform the following two-step goodwill impairment test:
•

In the first step of the goodwill impairment test, we compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not
considered impaired. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we perform the second step of the goodwill
impairment test to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.
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•

In the second step of the goodwill impairment test, we compare the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying
amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

Estimates and assumptions used to perform the impairment evaluation are inherently uncertain and can significantly affect the
outcome of the analysis. The estimates and assumptions we used in the annual assessment for impairment of goodwill included market
participant considerations and future forecasted operating results. Changes in operating results and other assumptions could materially affect
these estimates. Based on our assessment of qualitative factors, we determined that the two-step impairment test was not required. Accordingly,
we did not record any goodwill impairments during the years ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.
Product Exchanges
Quantities of products receivable or returnable under exchange agreements are reported within prepaid expenses and other current
assets or within accrued expenses and other payables on the consolidated balance sheets. We estimate the value of product exchange assets and
liabilities based on the weighted-average cost basis of the inventory we have delivered or will deliver on the exchange, plus or minus location
differentials.
Advance Payments Received from Customers
We record customer advances on product purchases as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets.
Noncontrolling Interests
We have certain consolidated subsidiaries in which outside parties own interests. The noncontrolling interest shown in our
consolidated statements of operations represents the other owners’ share of the net income (loss) of these entities.
Water Facility Development Agreement
In connection with one of our business combinations, we entered into a development agreement whereby we may acquire additional
water disposal facilities in Texas. Under this agreement, the other party (the “Developer”) may develop facilities in a designated area. We then
have the option to operate the facility for a period of up to 90 days, during which time we may elect to purchase the facility. If we elect to
purchase the facility, the Developer may choose one of two options specified in the agreement for the calculation of the purchase price.
During the period between which we have begun operating the facility and we have decided whether to purchase the facility, we are
entitled to a fee for operating the facility, which is forfeitable if we elect not to purchase the facility. We recognize revenue for these operator
fees once they cease to be forfeitable. When we elect to purchase a facility, we account for the transaction as a business combination.
Business Combination Measurement Period
We record the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination at their acquisition date fair values. Pursuant to
GAAP, an entity is allowed a reasonable period of time to obtain the information necessary to identify and measure the value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. As described in Note 4, certain of our acquisitions during the year ended March 31,
2014 are still within this measurement period, and as a result, the acquisition-date fair values we have recorded for the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities are subject to change.
Also as described in Note 4, we made certain adjustments during the year ended March 31, 2014 to our estimates of the acquisition
date fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations that occurred during the year ended March 31, 2013. We
retrospectively adjusted the March 31, 2013 consolidated balance sheet for these adjustments. Due to the immateriality of these adjustments,
we did not retrospectively adjust the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2013 for these measurement period
adjustments.
Discontinued Operations
In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an Accounting Standards Update that changes the criteria for
reporting discontinued operations. Under the new standard, a disposal of part of an entity is not classified as a discontinued operation
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unless the disposal represents a strategic shift that will have a major effect on an entity’s operations and financial results. We adopted the new
standard during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.
As described in Note 14, during the year ended March 31, 2014, we sold our compressor leasing business and wound down our natural
gas marketing business. These actions do not represent a strategic shift that had a major effect on our operations, and do not meet the criteria
under the new accounting standard for these businesses to be reported as discontinued operations.
Note 3 — Earnings per Unit
Our earnings per common and subordinated unit were computed as follows:
Year Ended March 31,
2014
2013
2012
(in thousands, except unit and per unit amounts)

Income attributable to parent equity
Income allocated to general partner (1)
Income attributable to limited partners

$
$

Income allocated to:
Common unitholders
Subordinated unitholders

$
$

Weighted average common units outstanding
Weighted average subordinated units outstanding

47,655 $
(14,148)
33,507 $

31,614
1,893

$
$

61,970,471
5,919,346

47,940 $
(2,917)
45,023 $

7,876
(8)
7,868

39,517
5,506

4,859
3,009

$
$

41,353,574
5,919,346

15,169,983
5,175,384

Income per common unit - basic and diluted

$

0.51

$

0.96

$

0.32

Income per subordinated unit - basic and diluted

$

0.32

$

0.93

$

0.58

(1) The income allocated to the general partner includes distributions to which it is entitled as the holder of incentive distribution
rights (“IDRs”), which are described in Note 11.
The restricted units described in Note 11 were antidilutive for the years ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.
Note 4 — Acquisitions
Year Ended March 31, 2014
Gavilon Energy
On December 2, 2013, we completed a business combination in which we acquired Gavilon Energy. We paid $832.4 million of cash,
net of cash acquired, in exchange for these assets and operations. The acquisition agreement also contemplates a post-closing adjustment to the
purchase price for certain working capital items. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense $5.3 million of costs during
the year ended March 31, 2014 related to the acquisition of Gavilon Energy.
The assets of Gavilon Energy include crude oil terminals in Oklahoma, Texas, and Louisiana and a 50% interest in Glass Mountain,
which owns a crude oil pipeline that originates in western Oklahoma and terminates in Cushing, Oklahoma. This pipeline became operational
in February 2014. The operations of Gavilon Energy include the marketing of crude oil, refined products, ethanol, biodiesel, and natural gas
liquids.
We are in the process of identifying and determining the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of
Gavilon Energy. The estimates of fair value reflected at March 31, 2014 are subject to change, and such changes could
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be material. We expect to complete this process prior to finalizing our financial statements for the quarter ending September 30, 2014. We have
preliminarily estimated the fair value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed as follows (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Accounts receivable - affiliates
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (3—40 years)
Vehicles (3 years)
Information technology equipment (3—7 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (3—40 years)
Land
Linefill and tank bottoms
Other (7 years)
Construction in process
Goodwill
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (10—20 years)
Lease agreements (1—5 years)
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable - trade
Accounts payable - affiliates
Accrued expenses and other payables
Advance payments received from customers
Other noncurrent liabilities
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

349,529
2,564
107,430
68,322
77,429
791
4,046
7,716
6,427
15,230
170
7,190
359,169

$

101,600
8,700
178,000
9,918
(342,792)
(2,585)
(70,999)
(10,667)
(44,740)
832,448

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets acquired,
net of liabilities assumed. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entity and the Partnership, the opportunity
to use the acquired business as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill will be
deductible for federal income tax purposes.
Our preliminary estimate of the fair value of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries exceeds our share of the historical net book
value of these subsidiaries’ net assets by approximately $70 million. This difference relates primarily to goodwill and customer relationships.
The acquisition method of accounting requires that executory contracts that are at unfavorable terms relative to current market
conditions at the acquisition date be recorded as assets or liabilities in the acquisition accounting. Since certain crude oil storage lease
commitments were at unfavorable terms relative to current market conditions, we recorded a liability of $12.9 million related to these lease
commitments in the acquisition accounting, and we amortized $2.9 million of this balance through cost of sales during the period from the
acquisition date through March 31, 2014. We will amortize the remainder of this liability over the term of the leases. The future amortization of
this liability is shown below (in thousands):
Year Ending March 31,

2015
2016
2017

$

6,500
3,260
300

As described in Note 14, on March 31, 2014, we assigned all of the storage and transportation contracts of the natural gas marketing
business to a third party. Since these contracts were at unfavorable terms relative to current market conditions, we paid $44.8 million to assign
these contracts. We recorded a liability of $50.8 million related to these storage and transportation contracts in the acquisition accounting, and
we amortized $6.0 million of this balance through cost of sales during the period from the acquisition date through the date we assigned the
contracts.
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We recorded $3.2 million of employee severance expense during the year ended March 31, 2014 as a result of personnel changes
subsequent to the acquisition of Gavilon Energy. In addition, certain personnel who were employees of Gavilon Energy are entitled to a bonus,
half of which was payable upon successful completion of the business combination and the remainder of which is payable in December 2014.
We are recording this as compensation expense over the vesting period. We recorded expense of $5.0 million during the year ended March 31,
2014 related to these bonuses, and we expect to record an additional expense of $6.6 million during the year ending March 31, 2015.
The operations of Gavilon Energy have been included in our consolidated statement of operations since Gavilon Energy was acquired
on December 2, 2013. Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2014 includes revenues of $2.9 billion and
operating income of $11.0 million that were generated by the operations of Gavilon Energy.
Oilfield Water Lines, LP
On August 2, 2013, we completed a business combination with entities affiliated with OWL, whereby we acquired water disposal and
transportation assets in Texas. We issued 2,463,287 common units, valued at $68.6 million, and paid $167.7 million of cash, net of cash
acquired, in exchange for OWL. The acquisition agreements included a provision whereby the purchase price could have been increased if
certain performance targets were achieved in the six months following the acquisition. These performance targets were not achieved, and
therefore no increase to the purchase price was warranted. The acquisition agreements also contemplate a post-closing payment for certain
working capital items. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense $0.8 million of costs related to the OWL acquisition
during the year ended March 31, 2014.
We have completed the process of identifying and determining the fair value of the long-lived assets acquired in the acquisition of
OWL. We have not yet finalized any post-closing payment for certain working capital items, and such changes could be material. We expect to
complete this process prior to finalizing our financial statements for the quarter ending June 30, 2014. We have preliminarily estimated the fair
value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed as follows (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Water treatment facilities and equipment (3—30 years)
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (7—30 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (10 years)
Non-compete agreements (2.5 years)
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Other noncurrent liabilities
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

7,268
154
402
710
23,173
8,157
2,198
53

$

110,000
2,000
89,699
(6,469)
(992)
(64)
236,289

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

167,732
68,557
236,289

The customer relationships were valued using a variation of the income approach known as the excess earnings method. This
methodology consists of deriving relevant cash flows to the underlying asset, and then deducting appropriate returns for other assets
contributing to the generation of the relevant cash flows. This valuation methodology requires estimates of customer retention, which were
based on our understanding of the level of competition in the region in which the assets operate. Our estimates of customer retention are also
relevant to the determination of the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets acquired,
net of liabilities assumed. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
The operations of OWL have been included in our consolidated statement of operations since OWL was acquired on August 2, 2013.
Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2014 includes revenues of $26.2 million and operating income of $0.9
million that was generated by the operations of OWL.
Other Water Solutions Acquisitions
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed four separate acquisitions of businesses to expand our water solutions
operations in Texas. On a combined basis, we issued 222,381 common units, valued at $6.8 million, and paid $178.9 million of cash, net of
cash acquired, in exchange for the assets and operations of these businesses. Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
March 31, 2014 includes revenues of $20.6 million and operating income of $7.1 million that was generated by the operations of these
acquisitions. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense $0.4 million of costs related to these acquisitions during the year
ended March 31, 2014.
We are in the process of identifying and determining the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in these four business
combinations. The estimates of fair value reflected at March 31, 2014 are subject to change, and such changes could be material. We expect to
complete this process prior to finalizing our financial statements for the quarter ending September 30, 2014. We have preliminarily estimated
the fair value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed as follows (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Water treatment facilities and equipment (3—30 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (7—30 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (8—10 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Non-compete agreements (3 years)
Water facility development agreement (5 years)
Water facility option agreement
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Other noncurrent liabilities
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

2,391
390
61
419
90
24,933
3,036
13
72,000
3,325
260
14,000
2,500
63,031
(382)
(300)
(114)
185,653

$

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

178,867
6,786
185,653

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets acquired,
net of liabilities assumed. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the
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Partnership, the opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that
all of the goodwill will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
As part of one of these business combinations, we entered into an option agreement with the seller of the business whereby we had the
option to purchase a salt water disposal facility that was under construction. We recorded an intangible asset of $2.5 million at the acquisition
date related to this option agreement. On March 1, 2014, we purchased the saltwater disposal facility for additional cash consideration of $3.7
million. The assets associated with this facility are included in the data in the table above.
As part of one of these business combinations, we entered into a development agreement that provides us a first right of refusal to
purchase disposal facilities that may be developed by the seller within a defined area in the Eagle Ford Basin through June 2018. On March 1,
2014, we purchased our first disposal facility pursuant to the development agreement for $21.0 million. The assets associated with this facility
are included in the data in the table above. In addition, we have exercised our option to operate, for evaluation purposes, three additional
disposal facilities developed by the seller. Pending the results of our evaluation, we have the right to purchase any or all of these facilities
within the 90-day evaluation period.
Crude Oil Logistics Acquisitions
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed two separate acquisitions of businesses to expand our crude oil logistics
business in Texas and Oklahoma. On a combined basis, we issued 175,211 common units, valued at $5.3 million, and paid $67.8 million of
cash, net of cash acquired, in exchange for the assets and operations of these businesses. The agreement for the acquisition of one of these
businesses contemplates a post-closing payment for certain working capital items. We incurred and charged to general and administrative
expense during the year ended March 31, 2014 $0.1 million of costs related to these acquisitions.
We are in the process of identifying and determining the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in these two business
combinations. The estimates of fair value reflected at March 31, 2014 are subject to change, and such changes could be material. We expect to
complete this process prior to finalizing our financial statements for the quarter ending June 30, 2014. We have preliminarily estimated the fair
value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed as follows (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (5—30 years)
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (2—30 years)
Barges and towboats (20 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (3 years)
Non-compete agreements (3 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

1,235
1,021
54
2,977
280
3,462
20,065
53
6,300
35
530
37,867
(665)
(124)
73,090

$

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

67,842
5,248
73,090

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets acquired,
net of liabilities assumed. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the
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Partnership, the opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that
all of the goodwill will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
Retail Propane and Liquids Acquisitions
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed four acquisitions of retail propane businesses and the acquisition of four natural
gas liquids terminals. On a combined basis, we paid $21.9 million of cash to acquire these assets and operations. The agreements for certain of
these acquisitions contemplate post-closing payments for certain working capital items. We are in the process of identifying and determining
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in certain of these business combinations, and as a result the estimates of fair value
reflected at March 31, 2014 are subject to change.
Year Ended March 31, 2013
High Sierra Combination
On June 19, 2012, we completed a business combination with High Sierra, whereby we acquired all of the ownership interests in
High Sierra. We paid $91.8 million of cash, net of $5.0 million of cash acquired, and issued 18,018,468 common units to acquire High Sierra
Energy, LP. These common units were valued at $406.8 million using the closing price of our common units on the New York Stock Exchange
(the “NYSE”) on the merger date. We also paid $97.4 million of High Sierra Energy, LP’s long-term debt and other obligations. Our general
partner acquired High Sierra Energy GP, LLC by paying $50.0 million of cash and issuing equity. Our general partner then contributed its
ownership interests in High Sierra Energy GP, LLC to us, in return for which we paid our general partner $50.0 million of cash and issued
2,685,042 common units to our general partner. We recorded the value of the 2,685,042 common units issued to our general partner at $8.0
million, which represents an estimate, in accordance with GAAP, of the fair value of the equity issued by our general partner to the former
owners of High Sierra’s general partner. In accordance with the GAAP fair value model, this fair value was estimated based on assumptions of
future distributions and a discount rate that a hypothetical buyer might use. Under this model, the potential for distribution growth resulting
from the prospect of future acquisitions and capital expansion projects would not be considered in the fair value calculation. The difference
between the estimated fair value of the general partner interests issued by our general partner of $8.0 million, calculated as described above,
and the fair value of the common units issued to our general partner of $60.6 million, as calculated using the closing price of the common units
on the NYSE, is reported as a reduction to equity. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the years ended
March 31, 2013 $3.7 million of costs related to the High Sierra transaction. We also incurred or accrued costs of $0.6 million related to the
equity issuance that we charged to equity.
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The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in our acquisition of High Sierra are summarized below (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Accounts receivable - affiliates
Inventories
Derivative assets
Forward purchase and sale contracts
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Water treatment facilities and equipment (3—30 years)
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (2—15 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (5—30 years)
Information technology equipment (3 years)
Other (2—30 years)
Construction in progress
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (5—17 years)
Lease contracts (1—10 years)
Trade names (indefinite)
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accounts payable - affiliates
Advance payments received from customers
Accrued expenses and other payables
Derivative liabilities
Forward purchase and sale contracts
Long-term debt
Other noncurrent liabilities
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Consideration paid, net of cash acquired

$

395,311
7,724
43,575
10,646
34,717
11,131
5,723
22,507
64,057
17,851
19,145
5,541
11,010
9,621

$

245,000
12,400
13,000
220,884
(417,369)
(9,014)
(1,237)
(35,611)
(5,726)
(18,680)
(2,537)
(3,224)
(2,400)
654,045

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued, net of issurance costs
Total consideration paid

$
$

239,251
414,794
654,045

We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts.
Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets acquired,
net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the opportunity to use
the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill will be deductible
for federal income tax purposes.
F-22

NGL ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
At March 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the Years Ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Pecos Combination
On November 1, 2012, we completed a business combination whereby we acquired Pecos Gathering & Marketing, L.L.C. and certain
of its affiliated companies (collectively, “Pecos”). The business of Pecos consists primarily of crude oil marketing and logistics operations in
Texas and New Mexico. We paid $132.4 million of cash (net of cash acquired) and assumed certain obligations with a value of $10.2 million
under certain equipment financing facilities. Also on November 1, 2012, we entered into a call agreement with the former owners of Pecos
pursuant to which the former owners of Pecos agreed to purchase a minimum of $45.0 million or a maximum of $60.0 million of common units
from us. On November 12, 2012, the former owners purchased 1,834,414 common units from us for $45.0 million pursuant to this call
agreement. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the year ended March 31, 2013 $0.6 million of costs related
to the Pecos combination.
The following table presents the final calculation of the fair value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition of Pecos:
Estimated at
March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

Final

Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (5—30 years)
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (2—15 years)
Land
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships
Trade names (indefinite life)
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Long-term debt
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

73,609
1,903
1,426

$

22,097
1,339
1,099
223
36

$

73,704
1,903
1,426

Change

$

19,193
1,248
913
224
177

—
900
91,747
(50,795)
(963)
(10,234)
132,387 $

8,000
1,000
86,661
(50,808)
(1,020)
(10,234)
132,387 $

(95)
—
—
2,904
91
186
(1)
(141)
(8,000)
(100)
5,086
13
57
—
—

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

87,444
44,943
132,387

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
Third Coast Combination
On December 31, 2012, we completed a business combination transaction whereby we acquired all of the membership interests in
Third Coast Towing, LLC (“Third Coast”) for $43.0 million in cash. The business of Third Coast consists primarily of transporting crude oil
via barge. Also on December 31, 2012, we entered into a call agreement with the former owners of Third Coast pursuant to which the former
owners of Third Coast agreed to purchase a minimum of $8.0 million or a maximum of $10.0 million of
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common units from us. On January 11, 2013, the former owners of Third Coast purchased 344,680 common units from us for $8.0 million
pursuant to this agreement.
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed the acquisition accounting for this business combination. The following table
presents the final calculation of the fair value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of Third Coast:
Estimated at
March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

Final

Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment:
Barges and towboats (20 years)
Other
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (3 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Goodwill
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

$

2,195 $
140

2,248 $
140

17,711
—

12,883
30

3,000
850
18,847
2,733
(2,429)
(164)
42,883 $

4,000
500
22,551
2,733
(2,048)
(154)
42,883 $

Change

(53)
—
4,828
(30)
(1,000)
350
(3,704)
—
(381)
(10)
—

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

35,000
7,883
42,883

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
Other Crude Oil Logistics and Water Solutions Business Combinations
During the year ended March 31, 2013, we completed four separate acquisitions to expand the assets and operations of our crude oil
logistics and water solutions businesses. On a combined basis, we paid $52.6 million in cash and assumed $1.3 million of long-term debt in the
form of non-compete agreements. We also issued 516,978 common units, valued at $12.4 million, as partial consideration for one of these
acquisitions. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the year ended March 31, 2013 $0.3 million of costs
related to these acquisitions.
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During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed the acquisition accounting for these business combinations. The following table
presents the final calculation of the fair value of the assets acquired (and useful lives) and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of these
businesses:
Estimated at
March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

Final

Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Vehicles (5—10 years)
Water treatment facilities and equipment (3—30 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (5—30 years)
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (2—15 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Construction in progress
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (5—10 years)
Non-compete agreements (3 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Goodwill
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses and other payables
Notes payable
Other noncurrent liabilities
Noncontrolling interest
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

$

2,676
191
737

$

2,660
191
738

Change

$

16
—
(1)

218
853
13,665
895
4,510
27
490

191
771
13,322
2,233
1,781
2
693

27
82
343
(1,338)
2,729
25
(203)

13,125
164
2,100
34,451
(3,374)
(1,914)
(1,340)
(156)
(2,333)
64,985 $

6,800
510
500
43,822
(3,374)
(2,026)
(1,340)
(156)
(2,333)
64,985 $

6,325
(346)
1,600
(9,371)
—
112
—
—
—
—

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid, net of cash acquired
Value of common units issued
Total consideration paid

$
$

52,552
12,433
64,985

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
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Retail Propane Combinations During the Year Ended March 31, 2013
During the year ended March 31, 2013, we entered into six separate business combination agreements to acquire retail propane and
distillate operations, primarily in the northeastern and southeastern United States. On a combined basis, we paid cash of $71.4 million and
issued 850,676 common units, valued at $18.9 million, in exchange for these assets. We also assumed $6.6 million of long-term debt in the
form of non-compete agreements. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the year ended March 31, 2013 $0.3
million related to these acquisitions. The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in these six combinations are as follows (in
thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventory
Other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Retail propane equipment (5—20 years)
Vehicles (5 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (30 years)
Other
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (10—15 years)
Trade names (indefinite)
Non-compete agreements (5 years)
Goodwill
Other non-current assets
Long-term debt, including current portion
Other assumed liabilities
Fair value of net assets acquired

$

8,715
5,155
1,228
1,945
28,763
11,344
7,052
1,201

$

16,890
2,924
1,387
21,983
784
(6,594)
(12,511)
90,266

Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash consideration paid
Value of common units issued
Total consideration

$
$

71,392
18,874
90,266

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired businesses over the fair value of the individual
assets acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts. We estimated the useful life of the customer relationships by reference to
historical customer retention data.
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Pro Forma Results of Operations (Unaudited)
As described above, we completed a number of acquisitions during the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. The operations of each
acquired business have been included in our consolidated results of operations since the date of acquisition of the business. The unaudited pro
forma consolidated data presented below has been prepared as if the following acquisitions had been completed on April 1, 2012:
•

High Sierra;

•

Pecos;

•

Third Coast;

•

OWL; and

•

Gavilon Energy.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated data presented below has also been prepared as if the following transactions, which are
described in Notes 8 and 11 to these consolidated financial statements, had been completed on April 1, 2012:
•

Our sale of common units in December 2013 in a private placement;

•

The amendment of our Credit Agreement in November 2013;

•

Our issuance of senior unsecured notes in October 2013;

•

Our sale of common units in September 2013 in a public offering;

•

The sale of common units in a public offering in July 2013;

•

Our entry into the Credit Agreement in June 2012; and

•

Our issuance of senior notes in June 2012.
Year Ended March 31,
2014
2013
(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Revenues
Net income (loss)
Net loss attributable to limited partners
Basic and diluted loss per common unit
Basic and diluted loss per subordinated unit

$

9,800,398 $
798
(14,446)
(0.18)
(0.18)

5,697,988
(72,171)
(75,251)
(0.95)
(0.95)

The pro forma consolidated data in the table above was prepared by adding historical results of operations of acquired businesses to
our historical results of operations and making certain pro forma adjustments. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the
results of operations that would have occurred if the transactions had occurred on April 1, 2012, nor is it necessarily indicative of future results
of operations.
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Gavilon Energy historically conducted trading operations, whereas we operate as a logistics business. Gavilon Energy’s historical
results of operations were subject to more volatility as a result of its trading operations than we would expect future results of operations to
have under our business model. In the pro forma data in the table above, no pro forma effect was given to the change in business model from a
trading business to a logistics business. Gavilon Energy historically recorded revenues net of product costs. In the pro forma table above, no
pro forma effect was given to the fact that this accounting policy is different than our accounting policy.
The pro forma net loss for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the table above includes $4.8 million of expense related to the retirement
of a liability associated with a business combination that OWL completed prior to our acquisition of OWL. This non-recurring expense is not
excluded from the pro forma net loss, as it does not directly result from our acquisition of OWL.
The pro forma net loss for the year ended March 31, 2014 shown in the table above reflects depreciation and amortization expense
estimates which are preliminary, as our identification of the assets and liabilities acquired, and the fair value determinations thereof, for the
business combination with Gavilon Energy have not been completed.
The pro forma losses per unit have been computed based on earnings or losses allocated to the limited partners after deducting the
total earnings allocated to the general partner. To calculate earnings attributable to the general partner, we have used historical distribution
amounts. For purposes of this calculation, we have assumed that the common units outstanding at March 31, 2014 were outstanding during the
full years presented above.
Year Ended March 31, 2012
Osterman
On October 3, 2011, we completed a business combination transaction with Osterman, whereby we acquired retail propane operations
in the northeastern United States. We issued 4,000,000 common units and paid $94.9 million of cash, net of cash acquired, in exchange for the
assets and operations of Osterman. The agreement also contemplated a post-closing payment of $4.8 million for certain specified working
capital items, which was paid in November 2012. We valued the 4 million limited partner common units at $81.9 million based on the closing
price of our common units on the closing date ($20.47 per unit). We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the
year ended March 31, 2012 $0.8 million of costs incurred in connection with the Osterman transaction. We also incurred costs related to the
equity issuance of $0.1 million that we charged to equity. The following table presents the final allocation of the acquisition cost to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their fair values (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Retail propane equipment (15—20 years)
Vehicles (5—20 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (30 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (20 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Non-compete agreements (7 years)
Goodwill
Assumed liabilities
Consideration paid, net of cash acquired
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$

9,350
3,869
215
2,349
47,160
7,699
3,829
732

$

54,500
8,500
700
52,267
(9,654)
181,516
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Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash paid at closing, net of cash acquired
Fair value of common units issued at closing
Working capital payment (paid in November 2012)
Consideration paid, net of cash acquired

$

$

94,873
81,880
4,763
181,516

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts. We estimated the useful life of the customer relationships by reference to
historical customer retention data.
SemStream
On November 1, 2011, we completed a business combination with SemStream. We entered into this business combination in order to
expand our liquids segment. SemStream contributed substantially all of its natural gas liquids business and assets to us in exchange for
8,932,031 of our limited partner common units and a cash payment of $91.0 million. We have valued the 8.9 million limited partner common
units at $184.8 million, based on the closing price of our common units on the closing date ($21.07) reduced by the expected present value of
distributions for certain units which were not eligible for full distributions until the quarter ending September 30, 2012. In addition, in
exchange for a cash contribution, SemStream acquired a 7.5% interest in our general partner. We incurred and charged to general and
administrative expense during the year ended March 31, 2012 $0.7 million of costs related to the SemStream transaction. We also incurred
costs of less than $0.1 million related to the equity issuance that we charged to equity.
The acquired assets included 12 natural gas liquids terminals in Arizona, Arkansas, Indiana, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana,
Washington and Wisconsin, 12 million gallons of aboveground propane storage, 3.7 million barrels of underground leased storage for natural
gas liquids and a rail fleet of 350 leased and 12 owned cars.
We have included the results of SemStream’s operations in our consolidated financial statements beginning November 1, 2011. The
operations of SemStream are reflected in our liquids segment.
The following table presents the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the SemStream combination (in
thousands):
Inventories
Derivative assets
Assets held for sale
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Natural gas liquids terminal assets (20—30 years)
Vehicles and railcars (5 years)
Other (5 years)
Investment in capital lease
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (8—15 years)
Lease contracts (1—4 years)
Goodwill
Assumed current liabilities
Consideration paid
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$

104,226
3,578
3,000
9,833
3,470
41,434
470
3,326
3,112

$

31,950
1,008
74,924
(4,591)
275,740
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Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired operations and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform to expand our wholesale marketing operations, and the acquired assembled workforce.
We estimate that all of the goodwill will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts. We estimated the useful life of the customer relationships by reference to
historical customer retention data.
Pacer Combination
On January 3, 2012, we completed a business combination with Pacer in order to expand our retail propane operations. The
combination was funded with cash of $32.2 million and the issuance of 1.5 million common units. We valued the 1.5 million common units
based on the closing price of our common units on the closing date. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the
year ended March 31, 2012 $0.7 million of costs related to the Pacer transaction. We also incurred costs of $0.1 million related to the equity
issuance that we charged to equity.
The assets contributed by Pacer consist of retail propane operations in Colorado, Illinois, Mississippi, Oregon, Utah and Washington.
The contributed assets include 17 owned or leased customer service centers and satellite distribution locations. We have included the results of
Pacer’s operations in our consolidated financial statements beginning January 3, 2012. The operations of Pacer are reported within our retail
propane segment.
Consideration paid consists of the following (in thousands):
Cash
Common units
Consideration paid

$

32,213
30,375
62,588

$

The following table presents the allocation of the acquisition cost to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their fair
values (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Retail propane equipment (15—20 years)
Vehicles (5 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (30 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (15 years)
Trade names (indefinite life)
Non-compete agreements
Goodwill
Assumed liabilities
Consideration paid

$

4,389
965
43
1,967
12,793
3,090
409
59

$

23,560
2,410
1,520
15,782
(4,399)
62,588

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
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We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts. We estimated the useful life of the customer relationships by reference to
historical customer retention data.
North American Combination
On February 3, 2012, we completed a business combination with North American in order to expand our retail propane operations.
The combination was funded with cash of $69.8 million. We incurred and charged to general and administrative expense during the year ended
March 31, 2012 $1.6 million of costs related to the North American acquisition.
The assets acquired from North American include retail propane and distillate operations in Connecticut, Delaware, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island.
The following table presents the allocation of the acquisition costs to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their fair
values (in thousands):
Accounts receivable - trade
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Retail propane equipment (15—20 years)
Natural gas liquids terminal assets (15—20 years)
Vehicles (5—15 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (30 years)
Other (3—5 years)
Intangible assets:
Customer relationships (10 years)
Trade names (10 years)
Non-compete agreements (3 years)
Goodwill
Assumed liabilities
Consideration paid

$

10,338
3,437
282
2,251
24,790
1,044
5,819
2,386
634

$

12,600
2,700
700
13,978
(11,129)
69,830

Goodwill represents the excess of the estimated consideration paid for the acquired business over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired, net of liabilities. Goodwill primarily represents the value of synergies between the acquired entities and the Partnership, the
opportunity to use the acquired businesses as a platform for growth, and the acquired assembled workforce. We estimate that all of the goodwill
will be deductible for federal income tax purposes.
We estimated the value of the customer relationship intangible asset using the income approach, which uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted). The measurement is based on the value
indicated by current market expectations about those future amounts. We estimated the useful life of the customer relationships by reference to
historical customer retention data.
Other Acquisitions
During the year ended March 31, 2012, we closed three additional acquisitions for cash payments of $6.4 million on a combined basis.
We also assumed $0.6 million in long-term debt in the form of non-compete agreements. These operations have been included in our results of
operations since the acquisition dates, and have not been material to our consolidated financial statements.
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Note 5 — Property, Plant and Equipment
Our property, plant and equipment consists of the following:
March 31,
Description and Estimated Useful Lives

2013
(Note 2)

2014
(in thousands)

Natural gas liquids terminal assets (2—30 years)
Retail propane equipment (2—30 years)
Vehicles (3—25 years)
Water treatment facilities and equipment (3—30 years)
Crude oil tanks and related equipment (2—40 years)
Barges and towboats (5—40 years)
Information technology equipment (3—7 years)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (3—40 years)
Land
Linefill and tank bottoms
Other (5—30 years)
Construction in progress

$

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

75,141
160,758
152,676
180,985
106,125
52,217
20,768
60,004
30,241
13,403
6,341
80,251
938,910
(109,564)
829,346

$

$

63,637
152,802
88,173
91,944
22,577
25,963
12,169
48,975
21,815
—
16,104
32,405
576,564
(50,127)
526,437

$

Depreciation expense was $59.9 million, $39.2 million and $10.6 million during the years ended March 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. During the year ended March 31, 2014, we capitalized $0.7 million of interest expense.
Note 6 — Goodwill
The changes in the balance of goodwill were as follows:
Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

2014

Beginning of period, as retrospectively adjusted (Note 2)
Acquisitions
End of period, as retrospectively adjusted (Note 2)

$
$

555,220
551,786
1,107,006

$
$

167,245
387,975
555,220

2012

$
$

Goodwill by reportable segment is as follows:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables

$

$
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606,383 $
262,203
90,135
114,285
22,000
12,000
1,107,006 $

246,345
109,470
87,136
112,269
—
—
555,220

8,568
158,677
167,245
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Note 7 — Intangible Assets
Our intangible assets consist of the following:
March 31, 2014

Amortizable Customer relationships (1)
Water facility development agreement
Lease and other agreements
Non-compete agreements
Trade names
Debt issuance costs
Total amortizable

Amortizable
Lives

Gross Carrying
Amount

3–20 years
5 years
5–8 years
2–7 years
1–10 years
5–10 years

$

Non-amortizable Trade names
Total

$

697,405
14,000
23,920
14,161
15,489
44,089
809,064
22,620
831,684

March 31, 2013
Gross Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Accumulated
Amortization
(Note 2)
Amortization
(in thousands)

$

83,261
2,100
13,190
6,388
3,081
8,708
116,728

$

$

116,728

$

405,160
—
15,210
11,509
2,784
19,494
454,157
31,430
485,587

$

30,959
—
7,018
2,871
326
2,981
44,155

$

44,155

(1) The weighted-average remaining amortization period for customer relationship intangible assets is approximately nine years.
Amortization expense was as follows:
Recorded in

Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

2014

Depreciation and amortization
Cost of sales
Interest expense
Loss on early extinguishment of debt

$

$

60,855 $
6,172
5,727
—
72,754 $

29,657 $
5,285
3,375
5,769
44,086 $

Expected amortization of our intangible assets is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending March 31,

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

$

$
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88,970
83,449
76,826
72,857
66,826
303,408
692,336

2012

4,538
800
1,277
—
6,615
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Note 8 — Long-Term Obligations
Our long-term debt consists of the following:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Revolving credit facility —
Expansion capital loans
Working capital loans
Senior notes
Unsecured notes
Other notes payable

$

Less - current maturities
Long-term debt

532,500
389,500
250,000
450,000
14,914
1,636,914
7,080
1,629,834

$

$

$

441,500
36,000
250,000
—
21,562
749,062
8,626
740,436

Credit Agreement
On June 19, 2012, we entered into a credit agreement (as amended, the “Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks. The Credit
Agreement includes a revolving credit facility to fund working capital needs (the “Working Capital Facility”) and a revolving credit facility to
fund acquisitions and expansion projects (the “Expansion Capital Facility,” and together with the Working Capital Facility, the “Revolving
Credit Facility”).
The Working Capital Facility had a total capacity of $935.5 million for cash borrowings and letters of credit at March 31, 2014. At
March 31, 2014, we had outstanding cash borrowings of $389.5 million and outstanding letters of credit of $270.6 million on the Working
Capital Facility. The Expansion Capital Facility had a total capacity of $785.5 million for cash borrowings at March 31, 2014. At March 31,
2014, we had outstanding cash borrowings of $532.5 million on the Expansion Capital Facility. The capacity available under the Working
Capital Facility may be limited by a “borrowing base,” as defined in the Credit Agreement, which is calculated based on the value of certain
working capital items at any point in time.
The commitments under the Credit Agreement expire on November 5, 2018. We have the right to pre-pay outstanding borrowings
under the Credit Agreement without incurring any penalties, and pre-payments of principal may be required if we enter into certain transactions
to sell assets or obtain new borrowings.
All borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest, at our option, at (i) an alternate base rate plus a margin of 0.50% to 1.50%
per annum or (ii) an adjusted LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.50% to 2.50% per annum. The applicable margin is determined based on our
consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement. At March 31, 2014, the interest rate in effect on outstanding LIBOR
borrowings was 1.91%, calculated as the LIBOR rate of 0.16% plus a margin of 1.75%. At March 31, 2014, the interest rate in effect on letters
of credit was 1.75%. Commitment fees are charged at a rate ranging from 0.38% to 0.50% on any unused credit. At March 31, 2014, our
outstanding borrowings and interest rates under our Revolving Credit Facility were as follows (dollars in thousands):
Amount

Expansion capital facility —
LIBOR borrowings
Working capital facility —
LIBOR borrowings
Base rate borrowings

$

Rate

532,500

1.91%

358,000
31,500

1.91%
4.00%

The Credit Agreement is secured by substantially all of our assets. The Credit Agreement specifies that our “leverage ratio,” as
defined in the Credit Agreement, cannot exceed 4.25 to 1.0 at any quarter end. At March 31, 2014, our leverage ratio was approximately 3 to 1.
The Credit Agreement also specifies that our “interest coverage ratio,” as defined in the Credit Agreement,
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cannot be less than 2.75 to 1 as of the last day of any fiscal quarter. At March 31, 2014, our interest coverage ratio was approximately 7 to 1.
The Credit Agreement contains various customary representations, warranties, and additional covenants, including, without limitation,
limitations on fundamental changes and limitations on indebtedness and liens. Our obligations under the Credit Agreement may be accelerated
following certain events of default (subject to applicable cure periods), including, without limitation, (i) the failure to pay principal or interest
when due, (ii) a breach by the Partnership or its subsidiaries of any material representation or warranty or any covenant made in the Credit
Agreement, or (iii) certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency.
At March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with the covenants under the Credit Agreement.
Senior Notes
On June 19, 2012, we entered into a note purchase agreement (as amended, the “Note Purchase Agreement”) whereby we issued
$250.0 million of senior notes in a private placement (the “Senior Notes”). The Senior Notes have an aggregate principal amount of $250.0
million and bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.65%. Interest is payable quarterly. The Senior Notes are required to be repaid in semi-annual
installments of $25.0 million beginning on December 19, 2017 and ending on the maturity date of June 19, 2022. We have the option to prepay outstanding principal, although we would incur a pre-payment penalty. The Senior Notes are secured by substantially all of our assets and
rank equal in priority with borrowings under the Credit Agreement.
The Note Purchase Agreement contains various customary representations, warranties, and additional covenants that, among other
things, limit our ability to (subject to certain exceptions): (i) incur additional debt, (ii) pay dividends and make other restricted payments,
(iii) create or permit certain liens, (iv) create or permit restrictions on the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other
distributions to us, (v) enter into transactions with affiliates, (vi) enter into sale and leaseback transactions and (vii) consolidate or merge or sell
all or substantially all or any portion of our assets. In addition, the Note Purchase Agreement contains the same leverage ratio and interest
coverage ratio requirements as our Credit Agreement, which are described above.
The Note Purchase Agreement provides for customary events of default that include, among other things (subject in certain cases to
customary grace and cure periods): (i) non-payment of principal or interest, (ii) breach of certain covenants contained in the Note Purchase
Agreement or the Senior Notes, (iii) failure to pay certain other indebtedness or the acceleration of certain other indebtedness prior to maturity
if the total amount of such indebtedness unpaid or accelerated exceeds $10.0 million, (iv) the rendering of a judgment for the payment of
money in excess of $10.0 million, (v) the failure of the Note Purchase Agreement, the Senior Notes, or the guarantees by the subsidiary
guarantors to be in full force and effect in all material respects and (vi) certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency. Generally, if an event of
default occurs (subject to certain exceptions), the trustee or the holders of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding
Senior Notes of any series may declare all of the Senior Notes of such series to be due and payable immediately.
At March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with the covenants under the Note Purchase Agreement and the Senior Notes.
Unsecured Notes
On October 16, 2013, we issued $450.0 million of 6.875% senior unsecured notes (the “Unsecured Notes”) in a private placement
exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuant to Rule 144A and Regulation S under
the Securities Act. We received net proceeds of $438.4 million, after the initial purchasers’ discount of $10.1 million and estimated offering
costs of $1.5 million. We used the net proceeds to reduce the outstanding balance on our Revolving Credit Facility.
The Unsecured Notes mature on October 15, 2021. Interest is payable on April 15 and October 15 of each year. We have the right to
redeem the Unsecured Notes prior to the maturity date, although we would be required to pay a premium for early redemption.
The purchase agreement and the indenture governing the Unsecured Notes contain various customary representations, warranties, and
additional covenants, including, without limitation, limitations on fundamental changes and limitations on indebtedness and liens. Our
obligations under the purchase agreement and the indenture may be accelerated following certain events of default (subject to applicable cure
periods), including, without limitation, (i) the failure to pay principal or interest when due, (ii) experiencing an event of default on certain other
debt agreements, or (iii) certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency.
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At March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with the covenants under the Unsecured Notes.
We also entered into a registration rights agreement whereby we have committed to exchange the Unsecured Notes for a new issue of
notes registered under the Securities Act that has substantially identical terms to the Unsecured Notes on or before October 16, 2014. If we are
unable to fulfill this obligation, we would be required to pay liquidated damages to the holders of the Unsecured Notes.
Other Notes Payable
We have executed various non-interest bearing notes payable, primarily related to non-compete agreements entered into in connection
with acquisitions of businesses. We also have certain notes payable related to equipment financing, which have interest rates ranging from
2.1% to 4.9% at March 31, 2014.
Debt Maturity Schedule
The scheduled maturities of our long-term debt are as follows at March 31, 2014:
Revolving
Credit
Facility

Year Ending March 31,

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

$

$

—
—
—
—
922,000
—
922,000

Senior
Notes

$

$

—
—
—
25,000
50,000
175,000
250,000

Other
Notes
Payable

Unsecured
Notes
(in thousands)

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
450,000
450,000

$

$

7,081
3,614
2,356
1,449
238
176
14,914

Total

$

$

7,081
3,614
2,356
26,449
972,238
625,176
1,636,914

Previous Credit Facilities
On June 19, 2012, we made a principal payment of $306.8 million to retire our previous revolving credit facility. Upon retirement of
this facility, we wrote off the portion of the debt issuance cost asset that had not yet been amortized. This expense is reported as “Loss on early
extinguishment of debt” in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2013.
Note 9 — Income Taxes
We believe that we qualify as a partnership for income tax purposes. As such, we generally do not pay United States federal income
tax. Rather, each owner reports his or her share of our income or loss on his or her individual tax return. The aggregate difference in the basis
of our net assets for financial and tax reporting purposes cannot be readily determined, as we do not have access to information regarding each
partner’s basis in the Partnership.
We have certain taxable corporate subsidiaries in the United States and Canada. In addition, our operations in Texas are subject to a
state franchise tax that is calculated based on revenues net of cost of sales.
A publicly traded partnership is required to generate at least 90% of its gross income (as defined for federal income tax purposes) from
certain qualifying sources. Income generated by our taxable corporate subsidiaries is excluded from this qualifying income calculation.
Although we routinely generate income outside of our corporate subsidiaries that is non-qualifying, we believe that at least 90% of our gross
income has been qualifying income for each of the calendar years since our IPO.
We evaluate uncertain tax positions for recognition and measurement in the consolidated financial statements. To recognize a tax
position, we determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation, based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more likely than not threshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements. We had no material uncertain tax
positions that required recognition in the consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2014.
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Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Contingencies
We are party to various claims, legal actions, and complaints arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of our
management, the ultimate resolution of these claims, legal actions, and complaints, after consideration of amounts accrued, insurance coverage,
and other arrangements, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
However, the outcome of such matters is inherently uncertain, and estimates of our liabilities may change materially as circumstances develop.
Customer Dispute
A customer of our crude oil logistics segment has disputed the transportation rate schedule we used to bill the customer for services
that we provided from November 2012 through February 2013, which was the same rate schedule that Pecos used to bill the customer from
April 2011 through October 2012 (prior to our acquisition of Pecos). The customer has not paid $1.7 million of the amount we charged for
services we provided from November 2012 through February 2013. In May 2013, we filed a petition in the District Court of Harris County,
Texas seeking to collect these unpaid fees from the customer. Later in May 2013, the customer filed an answer and counterclaim seeking to
recover $5.5 million that it paid to Pecos prior to our acquisition of Pecos. We have not recorded revenue for the $1.7 million of unpaid fees
charged from November 2012 through February 2013, pending resolution of the dispute.
During August 2013, the customer notified us that it intended to withhold payment of $3.3 million for services performed by us during
the period from June 2013 through August 2013, pending resolution of the dispute, although the customer has not disputed the validity of the
amounts billed for services performed during this time frame. Upon receiving this notification, we ceased providing services under this
contract, and on November 5, 2013, we filed a petition in the District Court of Harris County, Texas seeking to collect these unpaid fees from
the customer. We are not able to reliably predict the outcome of this dispute at this time, but we do not believe the outcome will have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
Canadian Fuel and Sales Taxes
The taxing authority of a province in Canada completed an audit of fuel and sales tax payments and alleged that an entity we acquired
should have collected from customers and remitted to the taxing authority fuel and sales taxes on certain historical sales. We recorded in the
acquisition accounting a liability of $0.8 million (net of receivables for expected recoveries from other parties). We now believe this matter is
resolved, and we removed the liability from our consolidated balance sheet and recorded a corresponding reduction to cost of sales during the
year ended March 31, 2014.
Environmental Matters
Our operations are subject to extensive federal, state, and local environmental laws and regulations. Although we believe our
operations are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations, risks of additional costs and liabilities are inherent
in our business, and there can be no assurance that significant costs will not be incurred. Moreover, it is possible that other developments, such
as increasingly stringent environmental laws, regulations and enforcement policies thereunder, and claims for damages to property or persons
resulting from the operations, could result in substantial costs. Accordingly, we have adopted policies, practices, and procedures in the areas of
pollution control, product safety, occupational health, and the handling, storage, use, and disposal of hazardous materials designed to prevent
material environmental or other damage, and to limit the financial liability that could result from such events. However, some risk of
environmental or other damage is inherent in our business.
Asset Retirement Obligations
We have recorded a liability of $2.3 million at March 31, 2014 for asset retirement obligations. This liability is related to wastewater
disposal facilities and crude oil facilities for which we have contractual and regulatory obligations to perform remediation and, in some
instances, dismantlement and removal activities when the assets are retired.
In addition to the obligations described above, we may be obligated to remove facilities or perform other remediation upon retirement
of certain other assets. However, we do not believe the present value of these asset retirement obligations, under current laws and regulations,
after taking into consideration the estimated lives of our facilities, is material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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Operating Leases
We have executed various noncancelable operating lease agreements for product storage, office space, vehicles, real estate, and
equipment. Future minimum lease payments under contractual commitments at March 31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending March 31,

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter
Total

$

$

133,170
93,454
64,209
49,802
29,213
58,182
428,030

Rental expense relating to operating leases was $98.3 million, $84.2 million, and $5.2 million during the years ended March 31, 2014,
2013, and 2012, respectively.
Sales and Purchase Contracts
We have entered into sales and purchase contracts for products to be delivered in future periods for which we expect the parties to
physically settle the contracts with inventory. At March 31, 2014, we had the following such commitments outstanding:
Volume

Value
(in thousands)

Natural gas liquids fixed-price purchase commitments (gallons)
Natural gas liquids floating-price purchase commitments (gallons)
Natural gas liquids fixed-price sale commitments (gallons)
Natural gas liquids floating-price sale commitments (gallons)
Crude oil fixed-price purchase commitments (barrels)
Crude oil fixed-price sale commitments (barrels)

31,111 $
522,947
63,944
272,495
4,016
3,574

39,117
618,293
77,682
395,095
364,557
324,765

We account for the contracts shown in the table above as normal purchases and normal sales. Under this accounting policy election,
we do not record the contracts at fair value at each balance sheet date; instead, we record the purchase or sale at the contracted value once the
delivery occurs. Contracts in the table above may have offsetting derivative contracts (described in Note 12) or inventory positions (described
in Note 2).
Certain other forward purchase and sale contracts do not qualify for the normal purchase and normal sale election. These contracts are
recorded at fair value on our consolidated balance sheet and are not included in the data in the table above. These contracts are included in the
derivative disclosures in Note 12, and represent $43.5 million of our prepaid expenses and other current assets and $34.6 million of our accrued
expenses and other payables at March 31, 2014.
Note 11 — Equity
Partnership Equity
The Partnership’s equity consists of a 0.1% general partner interest and a 99.9% limited partner interest. Limited partner equity
includes common and subordinated units. The common and subordinated units share equally in the allocation of income or loss. The principal
difference between common and subordinated units is that in any quarter during the subordination period, holders of the subordinated units are
not entitled to receive any distribution until the common units have received the minimum quarterly distribution plus any arrearages in the
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters. Subordinated units will not accrue arrearages.
We expect the subordination period to end in August 2014. When the subordination period ends, all remaining subordinated units will
convert into common units on a one-for-one basis and the common units will no longer be entitled to arrearages.
Our general partner is not obligated to make any additional capital contributions or to guarantee or pay any of our debts and
obligations.
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Initial Public Offering
On May 17, 2011, we completed our IPO. We sold a total of 4,025,000 common units in our IPO at $21.00 per unit. Our proceeds
from the sale of 3,850,000 common units of $71.9 million, net of total offering costs of $9.0 million, were used to repay advances under our
acquisition credit facility and for general partnership purposes. Proceeds from the sale of 175,000 common units ($3.4 million) from the
underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase additional common units from us were used to redeem 175,000 of the common units
outstanding prior to our IPO. Upon the completion of our IPO and the underwriters’ exercise in full of their option to purchase additional
common units from us and the redemption, we had outstanding 8,864,222 common units, 5,919,346 subordinated units, a 0.1% general partner
interest, and IDRs.
Common Units Issued in Business Combinations
As described in Note 4, we issued common units as partial consideration for several acquisitions. These are summarized below:
Osterman combination
SemStream combination
Pacer combination
Total - Year Ended March 31, 2012

4,000,000
8,932,031
1,500,000
14,432,031

High Sierra combination
Retail propane combinations
Crude oil logistics and water solutions combinations
Pecos combination
Third Coast combination
Total - Year Ended March 31, 2013

20,703,510
850,676
516,978
1,834,414
344,680
24,250,258

Water solutions combinations
Crude oil logistics combinations
OWL combination
Total - Year Ended March 31, 2014

222,381
175,211
2,463,287
2,860,879

In connection with the completion of certain of these transactions, we amended our Registration Rights Agreement, which provides
for certain registration rights for certain holders of our common units.
Equity Issuances
On July 5, 2013, we completed a public offering of 10,350,000 common units. We received net proceeds of $287.5 million, after
underwriting discounts and commissions of $12.0 million and offering costs of $0.7 million.
On September 25, 2013, we completed a public offering of 4,100,000 common units. We received net proceeds of $127.6 million,
after underwriting discounts and commissions of $5.0 million and offering costs of $0.2 million.
On December 2, 2013, we issued and sold 8,110,848 of our common units in a private placement. We received net proceeds of $235.1
million, after offering costs of $4.9 million.
Distributions
Our general partner has adopted a cash distribution policy that will require us to pay a quarterly distribution to the extent we have
sufficient cash from operations after establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses, including payments to the general
partner and its affiliates, referred to as “available cash,” in the following manner:
•

First, 99.9% to the holders of common units and 0.1% to the general partner, until each common unit has received the specified
minimum quarterly distribution, plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

•

Second, 99.9% to the holders of subordinated units and 0.1% to the general partner, until each subordinated unit has received the
specified minimum quarterly distribution.

•

Third, 99.9% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 0.1% to the general partner.

The general partner will also receive, in addition to distributions on its 0.1% general partner interest, additional distributions based on
the level of distributions paid to the limited partners. These distributions are referred to as “incentive distributions.”

The following table illustrates the percentage allocations of available cash from operating surplus between the unitholders and our
general partner based on the specified target distribution levels. The amounts set forth under “Marginal Percentage Interest in
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Distributions” are the percentage interests of our general partner and the unitholders in any available cash from operating surplus we distribute
up to and including the corresponding amount in the column “Total Quarterly Distribution per Unit.” The percentage interests shown for our
unitholders and our general partner for the minimum quarterly distribution are also applicable to quarterly distribution amounts that are less
than the minimum quarterly distribution. The percentage interests set forth below for our general partner include its 0.1% general partner
interest, assume our general partner has contributed any additional capital necessary to maintain its 0.1% general partner interest and has not
transferred its IDRs and there are no arrearages on common units.
Marginal Percentage Interest In
Distributions
Unitholders
General Partner

Total Quarterly
Distribution per Unit

Minimum quarterly distribution
First target distribution
Second target distribution
Third target distribution
Thereafter

above
above
above
above

$ 0.337500
$ 0.388125
$ 0.421875
$ 0.506250

up to
up to
up to

$ 0.337500
$ 0.388125
$ 0.421875
$ 0.506250

99.9%
99.9%
86.9%
76.9%
51.9%

0.1%
0.1%
13.1%
23.1%
48.1%

On May 5, 2011, we made a distribution of $3.9 million from available cash to our general partner and common unitholders at
March 31, 2011.
The following table summarizes the distributions declared subsequent to our IPO:
Date Declared

July 25, 2011
October 21, 2011
January 24, 2012
April 18, 2012
July 24, 2012
October 17, 2012
January 24, 2013
April 25, 2013
July 25, 2013
October 23, 2013
January 23, 2014
April 24, 2014

Record Date

August 3, 2011
October 31, 2011
February 3, 2012
April 30, 2012
August 3, 2012
October 29, 2012
February 4, 2013
May 6, 2013
August 5, 2013
November 4, 2013
February 4, 20143
May 5, 2014

Amount
Per Unit

Date Paid

August 12, 2011
November 14, 2011
February 14, 2012
May 15, 2012
August 14, 2012
November 14, 2012
February 14, 2013
May 15, 2013
August 14, 2013
November 14, 2013
February 14, 2014
May 15, 2014
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$

0.1669
0.3375
0.3500
0.3625
0.4125
0.4500
0.4625
0.4775
0.4938
0.5113
0.5313
0.5513

Amount Paid to
Limited Partners
(in thousands)

$

2,467
4,990
7,735
9,165
13,574
22,846
24,245
25,605
31,725
35,908
42,150
43,737

Amount Paid to
General Partner
(in thousands)

$

3
5
10
10
134
707
927
1,189
1,739
2,491
4,283
5,754
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Several of our business combination agreements contained provisions that temporarily limited the distributions to which the newlyissued units were entitled. The following table summarizes the number of equivalent units that were not eligible to receive a distribution on
each of the record dates:
Equivalent
Units Not
Eligible

Record Date

August 3, 2011
October 31, 2011
February 3, 2012
April 30, 2012
August 3, 2012
October 29, 2012
February 4, 2013
May 6, 2013
August 5, 2013
November 4, 2013
February 4, 2014
May 5, 2014

—
4,000,000
7,117,031
3,932,031
17,862,470
516,978
1,202,085
—
—
979,886
—
—

Equity-Based Incentive Compensation
Our general partner has adopted a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) which allows for the issuance of equity-based compensation to
employees and directors. The board of directors of our general partner has granted certain restricted units to employees and directors, which
will vest in tranches, subject to the continued service of the recipients. The awards may also vest in the event of a change in control, at the
discretion of the board of directors. No distributions will accrue to or be paid on the restricted units during the vesting period.
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The following table summarizes the restricted unit activity during the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013:
Unvested restricted units at March 31, 2012
Units granted
Units vested and issued
Units withheld for employee taxes
Units forfeited
Unvested restricted units at March 31, 2013
Units granted
Units vested and issued
Units withheld for employee taxes
Units forfeited
Unvested restricted units at March 31, 2014

—
1,684,400
(156,802)
(61,698)
(21,000)
1,444,900
494,000
(296,269)
(122,531)
(209,000)
1,311,100

The scheduled vesting of the awards is summarized below:
Vesting Date

Number of Awards

July 1, 2014
January 1, 2015
July 1, 2015
January 1, 2016
July 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
July 1, 2017
January 1, 2018
July 1, 2018
Total unvested units at March 31, 2014

408,300
4,000
341,300
4,000
322,500
4,000
192,500
4,000
30,500
1,311,100

We record the expense for each tranche on a straight-line basis over the period beginning with the vesting of the previous tranche and
ending with the vesting of the tranche. We adjust the cumulative expense recorded through the reporting date using the estimated fair value of
the awards at the reporting date. The impact of the lack of distribution rights during the vesting period was estimated using the value of the
most recent distribution and assumptions that a market participant might make about future distribution growth. We estimate that the future
expense we will record on the unvested awards at March 31, 2014 will be as follows (in thousands), after taking into consideration an estimate
of forfeitures of 95,000 units. For purposes of this calculation, we have used the closing price of the common units on March 31, 2014, which
was $37.53.
Year Ending March 31,

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Total

$

$
F-42
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Following is a rollforward of the liability related to equity-based compensation, which is reported within accrued expenses and other
payables on our consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):
Balance at March 31, 2012
Expense recorded
Value of units vested and issued
Taxes paid on behalf of participants
Balance at March 31, 2013
Expense recorded
Value of units vested and issued
Taxes paid on behalf of participants
Balance at March 31, 2014

$

$

—
10,138
(3,627)
(1,468)
5,043
17,804
(9,085)
(3,750)
10,012

The weighted-average fair value of the awards at March 31, 2014 was $33.78, which was calculated as the closing price of the
common units on March 31, 2014, adjusted to reflect the fact that the restricted units are not entitled to distributions during the vesting period.
The impact of the lack of distribution rights during the vesting period was estimated using the value of the most recent distribution and
assumptions that a market participant might make about future distribution growth.
The number of common units that may be delivered pursuant to awards under the LTIP is limited to 10% of the issued and outstanding
common and subordinated units. The maximum number of units deliverable under the plan automatically increases to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common and subordinated units immediately after each issuance of common units, unless the plan administrator determines to
increase the maximum number of units deliverable by a lesser amount. Units withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations are not considered
to be delivered under the LTIP. In addition, if an award is forfeited, canceled, exercised, paid or otherwise terminates or expires without the
delivery of units, the units subject to such award are again available for new awards under the LTIP. At March 31, 2014, 6.2 million units
remain available for issuance under the LTIP.
Note 12 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) are carried at amounts which reasonably approximate their fair values, due to their short-term nature. We believe the
carrying amounts of our long-term debt instruments, including the Revolving Credit Facility and the Senior Notes, approximate their fair
values, as we do not believe market conditions have changed materially since we entered into these debt agreements.
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Commodity Derivatives
The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the commodity derivative assets (liabilities) reported on the consolidated
balance sheet at March 31, 2014:
Derivative
Derivative
Assets
Liabilities
(in thousands)

Level 1 measurements
Level 2 measurements

$

Netting of counterparty contracts(1)
Cash collateral provided or held
Commodity contracts reported on consolidated balance sheet

$

4,990
49,605
54,595

$

(3,258)
(43,303)
(46,561)

(4,347)
456
50,704 $

4,347
—
(42,214)

(1) Relates to derivative assets and liabilities that are expected to be net settled on an exchange or through a master netting
arrangement with the counterparty.
The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the commodity derivative assets (liabilities) reported on the consolidated
balance sheet at March 31, 2013:
Derivative
Derivative
Assets
Liabilities
(in thousands)

Level 1 measurements
Level 2 measurements

$

Netting of counterparty contracts(1)
Cash collateral provided or held
Commodity contracts reported on consolidated balance sheet

$

947
9,911
10,858

$

(3,324)
(13,280)
(16,604)

(3,503)
(1,760)
5,595 $

3,503
400
(12,701)

(1) Relates to derivative assets and liabilities that are expected to be net settled on an exchange or through a master netting
arrangement with the counterparty.
The commodity derivative assets (liabilities) are reported in the following accounts on the consolidated balance sheets:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Accrued expenses and other payables
Net asset (liability)

$

$
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The following table sets forth our open commodity derivative contract positions at March 31, 2014 and 2013. We do not account for
these derivatives as hedges.

Contracts

At March 31, 2014 Cross-commodity (1)
Crude oil fixed-price (2)
Crude oil index (3)
Propane fixed-price (4)
Refined products fixed-price (5)
Renewable products fixed-price (6)
Other

Settlement Period

April 2014 – March 2015
April 2014 – March 2015
April 2014 – December 2015
April 2014 – March 2015
April 2014 – July 2014
April 2014 – July 2014
April 2014

Net cash collateral provided
Net value of commodity derivatives on
consolidated balance sheet
At March 31, 2013 Cross-commodity (1)
Crude oil fixed-price (2)
Crude oil index (3)
Propane fixed-price (4)
Other

Total
Notional
Units
(Barrels)

Fair Value
of Net Assets
(Liabilities)
(in thousands)

140 $
(1,600)
3,598
60
732
106
—

$

April 2013 - March 2014
April 2013 - March 2014
April 2013 - June 2014
April 2013 - March 2014
May 2013 - June 2013

Net cash collateral held
Net value of commodity derivatives on
consolidated balance sheet

(1,876)
(2,796)
6,099
1,753
560
4,084
210
8,034
456
8,490

430 $
(144)
(91)
(282)
8

(10,208)
1,033
153
3,197
79
(5,746)
(1,360)

$

(7,106)

(1) Cross-commodity — Our operating segments may purchase or sell a physical commodity where the underlying contract pricing
mechanisms are tied to different commodity price indices. The contracts listed in this table as “Cross-commodity” represent
derivatives we have entered into as economic hedges against the risk of one commodity price moving relative to another
commodity price.
(2) Crude oil fixed-price — Our crude oil logistics segment routinely purchases crude oil inventory to enable us to fulfill future
orders expected to be placed by our customers. The contracts listed in this table as “Crude oil fixed-price” represent derivatives
we have entered into as an economic hedge against the risk that crude oil prices will decline while we are holding the inventory.
(3) Crude oil index — Our crude oil logistics segment may purchase or sell crude oil where the underlying contract pricing
mechanisms are tied to different crude oil indices. These indices may vary in the type or location of crude oil, or in the timing of
delivery within a given month. The contracts listed in this table as “Crude oil index” represent derivatives we have entered into as
an economic hedge against the risk of one crude oil index moving relative to another crude oil index.
(4) Propane fixed-price — Our liquids segment routinely purchases inventory during the warmer months and stores the inventory for
sale in the colder months. The contracts listed in this table as “Propane fixed-price” represent derivatives we have entered into as
an economic hedge against the risk that propane prices will decline while we are holding the inventory.
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(5) Refined products fixed-price — Our refined products segment routinely purchases refined products inventory to enable us to
fulfill future orders expected to be placed by our customers. The contracts listed in this table as “Refined products fixed-price”
represent derivatives we have entered into as an economic hedge against the risk that refined product prices will decline while we
are holding the inventory.
(6) Renewable products fixed-price — Our renewables segment routinely purchases biodiesel and ethanol inventory to enable us to
fulfill future orders expected to be placed by our customers. The contracts listed in this table as “Renewable products fixed-price”
represent derivatives we have entered into as an economic hedge against the risk that biodiesel or ethanol prices will decline while
we are holding the inventory.
We recorded the following net gains (losses) from our commodity derivatives to cost of sales:
Year Ended March 31,

2014
2013
2012

$

(43,655)
(4,381)
5,676

Credit Risk
We maintain credit policies with regard to our counterparties on the derivative financial instruments that we believe minimize our
overall credit risk, including an evaluation of potential counterparties’ financial condition (including credit ratings), collateral requirements
under certain circumstances and the use of standardized agreements, which allow for netting of positive and negative exposure associated with
a single counterparty.
We may enter into industry standard master netting agreements and may enter into cash collateral agreements requiring the
counterparty to deposit funds into a brokerage margin account. The netting agreements reduce our credit risk by providing for net settlement of
any offsetting positive and negative exposures with counterparties. The cash collateral agreements reduce the level of our net counterparty
credit risk because the amount of collateral represents additional funds that we may access to net settle positions due us, and the amount of
collateral adjusts each day in response to changes in the market value of counterparty derivatives.
Our counterparties consist primarily of financial institutions and energy companies. This concentration of counterparties may impact
our overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that the counterparties may be similarly affected by changes in economic,
regulatory or other conditions.
As is customary in the crude oil industry, we generally receive payment from customers on a monthly basis. As a result, receivables
from individual customers in our crude oil logistics are typically higher than the receivables from customers of our other segments.
Failure of a counterparty to perform on a contract could result in our inability to realize amounts that have been recorded on our
consolidated statements of financial position and recognized in our net income.
Interest Rate Risk
Our Revolving Credit Facility is variable-rate debt with interest rates that are generally indexed to bank prime or LIBOR interest rates.
At March 31, 2014, we have $922.0 million of outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility at a rate of 1.98%. A change in
interest rates of 0.125% would result in an increase or decrease of our annual interest expense of $1.2 million on the $922.0 million of
outstanding borrowings on the revolving credit facility at March 31, 2014.
Note 13 — Segments
Our reportable segments are based on the way in which our management structure is organized. Certain financial data related to our
segments is shown below. Transactions between segments are recorded based on prices negotiated between the segments.
Our crude oil logistics segment sells crude oil and provides crude oil transportation services to wholesalers, refiners, and producers.
Our water solutions segment provides services for the transportation, treatment, and disposal of wastewater generated from crude oil and
natural gas production, and generates revenue from the sale of recycled wastewater and recovered hydrocarbons. Our liquids segment supplies
propane, butane, and other products, and provides natural gas liquids transportation, terminaling, and storage services to retailers, wholesalers,
and refiners. Our retail propane segment sells propane and distillates to end users consisting of
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residential, agricultural, commercial, and industrial customers, and to certain re-sellers. Our retail propane segment consists of two divisions,
which are organized based on the location of the operations.
We also operate a refined products marketing business, which purchases gasoline and diesel fuel from suppliers and typically sells
these products in back-to-back contracts to customers at a nationwide network of third-party owned terminaling and storage facilities. We also
operate a renewables business, which purchases ethanol primarily at production facilities, and transports the ethanol for sale at various
locations to refiners and blenders, and purchases biodiesel from production facilities in the Midwest and in Houston, Texas, and transports the
product using leased railcars for sale to refiners and blenders. These businesses were acquired in our December 2013 acquisition of Gavilon
Energy.
Items labeled “corporate and other” in the table below include the operations of a compressor leasing business that we acquired in our
June 2012 merger with High Sierra and sold in February 2014, and the natural gas marketing operations that we acquired in our
December 2013 acquisition of Gavilon Energy and began winding down during fiscal 2014. The “corporate and other” category also includes
certain corporate expenses that are incurred and are not allocated to the reportable segments. This data is included to reconcile the data for the
reportable segments to data in our consolidated financial statements.
Certain information related to the results of operations of each segment is shown in the tables below:
2014

Revenues:
Crude oil logistics Crude oil sales
Crude oil transportation and other
Water solutions Water treatment and disposal
Water transportation
Liquids Propane sales
Other product sales
Other revenues
Retail propane Propane sales
Distillate sales
Other revenues
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Eliminations of intersegment sales
Total revenues

$

$
F-47

4,559,923
36,469

Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

$

2,322,706
16,442

2012

$

—
—

125,788
17,312

54,334
7,893

—
—

1,632,948
1,231,965
31,062

841,448
858,276
33,954

923,022
251,627
2,462

388,225
127,672
35,918
1,180,895
176,781
437,713
(283,397)
9,699,274 $

288,410
106,192
35,856
—
—
4,233
(151,977)
4,417,767 $

175,417
6,547
17,370
—
—
—
(65,972)
1,310,473
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2014

Depreciation and amortization:
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Total depreciation and amortization

$

$

22,111
55,105
11,018
28,878
109
516
3,017
120,754
2014

Operating income (loss):
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Total operating income

$

$

Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

$

$

9,176
20,923
11,085
25,496
—
—
2,173
68,853

2012

$

$

Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

678 $
10,317
71,888
61,285
4,080
2,434
(44,117)
106,565 $

—
—
3,661
11,450
—
—
—
15,111
2012

34,236 $
8,576
30,336
46,869
—
—
(32,710)
87,307 $

—
—
9,735
9,616
—
—
(4,321)
15,030

The table below shows additions to property, plant and equipment for each segment. This information has been prepared on the
accrual basis, and includes property, plant and equipment acquired in acquisitions.
2014

Additions to property, plant and equipment, including acquisitions
(accrual basis):
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Total
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$

$

204,642
100,877
52,560
24,430
719
519
7,242
390,989

Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

$

$

89,860
137,116
15,129
66,933
—
—
17,858
326,896

2012

$

$

—
—
50,276
150,181
—
—
—
200,457
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The following tables show long-lived assets (consisting of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill) and total
assets by segment:
March 31,
2013
(Note 2)

2014
(in thousands)

Total assets:
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Total

$

$

Long-lived assets, net:
Crude oil logistics
Water solutions
Liquids
Retail propane
Refined products
Renewables
Corporate and other
Total

$

$

1,723,812
875,714
577,795
541,832
157,581
145,649
144,840
4,167,223

$

980,978
848,479
274,846
438,324
27,017
33,703
47,961
2,651,308

$

$

$

801,351
466,412
474,141
513,301
—
—
36,413
2,291,618

357,230
453,909
238,192
441,762
—
—
31,996
1,523,089

Note 14 — Disposals and Impairments
We acquired Gavilon Energy in December 2013, which operated a natural gas marketing business. During March 2014, we assigned
all of the storage and transportation contracts of the natural gas marketing business to a third party. Since these contracts were at unfavorable
terms relative to current market conditions, we paid $44.8 million to assign these contracts. We recorded a liability of $50.8 million related to
these storage and transportation contracts in the acquisition accounting, and we amortized $6.0 million of this balance through cost of sales
during the period from the acquisition date through the date we assigned the contracts. We also assigned all forward purchase and sale contracts
and all financial derivative contracts, and thereby wound down the natural gas business. Our consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended March 31, 2014 includes $1.4 million of operating income related to the natural gas business, which is reported within “corporate and
other” in the segment disclosures in Note 13.
We acquired High Sierra in June 2012, which operated a compressor leasing business. We sold the compressor leasing business in
February 2014 for $10.8 million (net of the amount due to the owner of the noncontrolling interest in the business). We recorded a gain on the
sale of the business of $4.4 million, $1.6 million of which was attributable to the disposal of the noncontrolling interest. We reported the gain
as a reduction to operating expenses in our consolidated statement of operations. Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
March 31, 2014 includes $2.3 million of operating income related to the compressor leasing business, which is reported within “corporate and
other” in the segment disclosures in Note 13.
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we recorded an impairment of $5.3 million to the property, plant and equipment of one of our
natural gas liquids terminals. This loss is reported within operating expenses of our liquids segment.
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During the year ended March 31, 2014, two of our water solutions facilities experienced damage to their property, plant and
equipment as a result of lightning strikes. We recorded a write-down to property, plant and equipment of $1.5 million related to these incidents,
which is reported within operating expenses in our consolidated statement of operations.
Note 15 — Transactions with Affiliates
Since our business combination with SemStream on November 1, 2011, SemGroup Corporation (“SemGroup”) has held ownership
interests in us and in our general partner, and has the right to appoint two members to the board of directors of our general partner. Subsequent
to November 1, 2011, we have sold product to and purchased product from affiliates of SemGroup. These transactions are included within
revenues and cost of sales in our consolidated statements of operations.
Certain members of our management own interests in entities with which we have purchased products and services from and have sold
products and services. The majority of these purchases represent crude oil purchases and are reported within cost of sales in our consolidated
statements of operations, although $8.2 million of these transactions during the year ended March 31, 2014 represented capital expenditures
and were recorded as increases to property, plant and equipment. The majority of these sales represent sales of crude oil and have been
recorded within revenues in our consolidated statement of operations.
These transactions are summarized in the table below:
Year Ended March 31,
2013
(in thousands)

2014

Sales to SemGroup
Purchases from SemGroup
Sales to entities affiliated with management
Purchases from entities affiliated with management

$

306,780
445,951
110,824
120,038

$

32,431
60,425
16,828
60,942

2012

$

Receivables from affiliates consist of the following:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Receivables from entities affiliated with management
Receivables from SemGroup

$

142
7,303
7,445

$

$
$

22,883
—
22,883

Payables to affiliates consist of the following:
March 31,
2014

2013
(in thousands)

Payables to SemGroup
Payables to entities affiliated with management

$
$
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76,192
654
76,846

$
$

4,601
2,299
6,900

29,200
23,800
—
—
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We completed a merger with High Sierra Energy, LP and High Sierra Energy GP, LLC in June 2012. We paid $91.8 million of cash,
net of $5.0 million of cash acquired, and issued 18,018,468 common units to acquire High Sierra Energy, LP. We also paid $97.4 million of
High Sierra Energy, LP’s long-term debt and other obligations. Our general partner acquired High Sierra Energy GP, LLC by paying $50.0
million of cash and issuing equity. Our general partner then contributed its ownership interests in High Sierra Energy GP, LLC to us, in return
for which we paid our general partner $50.0 million of cash and issued 2,685,042 common units to our general partner.
During the year ended March 31, 2014, we completed the acquisition of a crude oil logistics business owned by an employee. We paid
$11.0 million of cash for this acquisition. During the year ended March 31, 2013, we completed two business combinations with entities in
which members of our management owned interests. We paid $14.0 million of cash (net of cash acquired) on a combined basis for these two
acquisitions. We also paid $5.0 million under a non-compete agreement to an employee.
Note 16 — Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Our summarized unaudited quarterly financial data is presented below. The computation of net income per common and subordinated
unit is done separately by quarter and year. The total of net income per common and subordinated unit of the individual quarters may not equal
the net income per common and subordinated unit for the year, due primarily to the income allocation between the general partner and limited
partners and variations in the weighted average units outstanding used in computing such amounts.
Our retail propane segment’s business is seasonal due to weather conditions in our service areas. Propane sales to residential and
commercial customers are affected by winter heating season requirements, which generally results in higher operating revenues and net income
during the period from October through March of each year and lower operating revenues and either net losses or lower net income during the
period from April through September of each year. Our liquids segment is also subject to seasonal fluctuations, as demand for propane and
butane is typically higher during the winter months. Our operating revenues from our other segments are less weather sensitive. Additionally,
the acquisitions described in Note 4 impact the comparability of the quarterly information within the year, and year to year.
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June 30,
2013

Total revenues
Total cost of sales
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) attributable to parent equity
Earnings (loss) per unit, basic and diluted Common units
Subordinated units
Weighted average common units outstanding - basic
and diluted
Weighted average subordinated outstanding units basic and diluted

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,385,957
1,303,076
(17,508)
(17,633)

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

(0.35) $
(0.46) $

1,593,937
1,488,850
(932)
(941)

Year Ended
March 31,
2014

$
$
$
$

2,743,445
2,576,029
24,052
23,898

$
$
$
$

3,975,935
3,764,744
43,146
42,331

$
$
$
$

9,699,274
9,132,699
48,758
47,655

(0.05) $
(0.09) $

0.27
0.23

$
$

0.46
0.46

$
$

0.51
0.32

47,703,313

58,909,389

67,941,726

73,421,309

61,970,471

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346

June 30,
2012

Total revenues
Total cost of sales
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) attributable to parent equity
Earnings (loss) per unit, basic and diluted Common units
Subordinated units
Weighted average common units outstanding - basic
and diluted
Weighted average subordinated outstanding units basic and diluted

Quarter Ended
September 30,
December 31,
March 31,
2013
2013
2014
(in thousands, except unit and per unit data)

326,436
298,985
(24,710)
(24,650)

Quarter Ended
September 30,
December 31,
March 31,
2012
2012
2013
(in thousands, except unit and per unit data)

Year Ended
March 31,
2013

$
$
$
$

1,135,510
1,053,690
10,082
10,073

$
$
$
$

1,338,208
1,204,545
40,477
40,176

$
$
$
$

1,617,613
1,481,890
22,341
22,341

$
$
$
$

4,417,767
4,039,110
48,190
47,940

(0.76) $
(0.77) $

0.18
0.18

$
$

0.75
0.75

$
$

0.39
0.39

$
$

0.96
0.93

26,529,133

44,831,836

46,364,381

47,665,015

41,353,574

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346

5,919,346
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